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SIGNATURES

PART I
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K, including "Management's Discussions and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" in Item 7, contains
forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934. We caution investors that any forward-looking statements presented in this
Annual Report and presented elsewhere by management from time to time are based
on management's beliefs and assumptions made by, and information currently
available to, management. When used, the words "anticipate", "believe",
"expert", "intend", "may", "plan", "estimate", "project", "should", "will be"
and similar expressions which do not relate solely to historical matters are
intended to identify forward-looking statements. Such statements are subject to
risks, uncertainties and assumptions and are not guarantees of future
performance, which may be affected by known and unknown risks, trends,
uncertainties and factors that are beyond our control, including, but not
limited to, the risks discussed in "Risk Factors" in Item 1A of this Annual
Report. Should one or more of these risks or uncertainties materialize, or
should underlying assumptions prove incorrect, actual results may vary
materially from those anticipated, estimated or projected. We expressly disclaim
any responsibility to update forward-looking statements. Accordingly, past
results and trends should not be used by investors to anticipate future results
or trends.

OVERVIEW AND RECENT EVENTS

Dynabazaar, Inc. ("we," "us," "Dynabazaar" or the "Company") was incorporated in
the State of Delaware in February 1997 as "Fairmarket, Inc." Through September
3, 2003, the Company was an online auction and promotions technology service
provider that enabled marketers to create results-oriented rewards programs and
helped commerce companies automate the process of selling their excess inventory
online to wholesale and retail buyers. On September 4, 2003, we sold
substantially all of our operating assets to eBay, Inc. ("eBay") for
consideration of $4.5 million in cash under the terms and conditions of an asset
purchase agreement we entered into with eBay on June 20, 2003 (the "Asset
Purchase Agreement"). Following the closing of the asset sale, we changed our
name from "Fairmarket, Inc." to "Dynabazaar, Inc."

We are currently reviewing alternatives for the use of our remaining assets,
which may include pursuing a plan of complete liquidation and dissolution,
possibly including the sale of our remaining assets. Alternatively, we may
decide to pursue selling our remaining assets outside of a liquidation and
dissolution, to make additional distributions of cash to our stockholders and/or
to explore other business opportunities unrelated to our historical business,
including the possible acquisition of other businesses or the possible merger
with another Company. At this time, our Board of Directors has not made any
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decision to pursue any one of these options and has not identified any such
opportunities. We cannot assure you that we will be able to identify or
successfully capitalize on any appropriate business opportunities.

In connection with the Company's cessation of its online auction business, the
Company relocated its principal executive offices as of January 1, 2004 to 888
Seventh Avenue, 17th Floor, New York, 10019, an office maintained by Barington
Capital Group, L.P. ("Barington"), a limited partnership whose general partner
is a corporation of which James Mitarotonda is Chairman, President and Chief
Executive Officer. Mr. Mitarotonda is a director of the Company and our former
President and Chief Executive Officer. William Fox, the President, Chief
Executive Officer and a director of the Company, is the Vice Chairman of
Barington. Pursuant to an administrative services agreement we entered into with
Barington in December 2003 (which ran through December 31, 2004), we paid
Barington a monthly fee of $8,000 for performing certain administrative services
on behalf of the Company. In connection with the agreement, we also granted to
James Mitarotonda an option to purchase 320,000 shares of our common stock. The
option is fully exercisable and was granted with an exercise price per share
equal to $0.33, the fair market value of our common stock on the grant date. The
Company entered into an amended administrative services agreement with Barington
dated as of December 17, 2004. Under the amended agreement, which runs through
December 31, 2006, Barington is to be paid a fee of $15,000 per month for
performing certain administrative, accounting and other services on behalf of
the Company. However, as of March 1, 2006, the Company and Barington agreed to
reduce the monthly fee to $7,500. In addition, Barington is to be paid a fee of

$175 an hour for any legal services provided by Barington on behalf of the
Company at the Company's request. The Company has also agreed that in the event
that Barington identifies for the Company, at its request, a business
transaction such as a merger, acquisition or joint venture, and/or provides the
Company with financial consulting or merger and acquisition services in
connection with such business transaction, the Company will pay Barington a fee
to be agreed upon between Barington and the Board of Directors of the Company.
In connection with the amended agreement, the Company granted options to certain
designees of Barington to purchase, in the aggregate, 320,000 shares of the
Company's common stock at an exercise price of $0.31 per share, the fair market
value of the Company's common stock on the grant date.

On January 31, 2005, the Board of Directors appointed Karen Schneider to serve
as a Class II director. On March 23, 2006, Karen Schneider resigned from the
Board of Directors in order to devote additional time to her position as a
senior executive of Pringles of Scotland, a fashion manufacturing company
located in the United Kingdom.

On June 30, 2005, the Company entered into a stock purchase agreement (the
"Stock Purchase Agreement") with Lloyd Miller, III, a former director of the
Company, on behalf of himself and on behalf of certain affiliated entities,
whereby the Company purchased from Mr. Miller and such affiliated entities an
aggregate of 3,657,988 shares of common stock, par value $0.001 per share, of
the Company at an aggregate purchase price of approximately $1.2 million.
Pursuant to the Stock Purchase Agreement, Mr. Miller was also paid 13.6% of the
net proceeds distributed to the Company pursuant to the escrow agreement dated
as of September 4, 2003 by and among the Company, eBay and Zions First National
Bank, as additional consideration for his shares of common stock (the "Escrow
Agreement") .

On September 6, 2005, the Company received a payment of $2,045,982 from Zions
First National Bank Pursuant to the Escrow Agreement. The payment represented
the $2 million held in escrow under the terms and conditions of the Asset
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Purchase Agreement we entered into with eBay together with $45,982 of accrued
interest. In accordance with the Stock Purchase Agreement entered into with
former director Lloyd Miller, III and certain affiliated entities, the Company
paid to Mr. Miller and certain affiliated entities approximately $278,000 from
the proceeds of the Escrow Agreement, which was recorded as additional
consideration for the stock purchase.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
FACTORS THAT MAY AFFECT RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITION

This Annual Report on Form 10-K, including "Management's Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" in item 7, contains
forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934. We caution investors that any forward-looking statements presented in this
Annual Report and presented elsewhere by management from time to time are based
on management's beliefs and assumptions made by, and information currently
available to, management. When used, the words "anticipate", "believe",

"expert", "intend", "may", "plan", "estimate", "project", "should", "will be"
and similar expressions which do not relate solely to historical matters are
intended to identify forward-looking statements. Such statements are subject to
risks, uncertainties and assumptions and are not guarantees of future
performance, which may be affect by known and unknown risks, trends,
uncertainties and factors that are beyond our control, including, but not
limited to, the risks discussed in "Risk Factors" in Item 1A of this Annual
Report. Should one or more of these risks discussed in "Risk Factors" in Item 1A
of this Annual Report. Should one or more these risks or uncertainties
materialize, or should underlying assumptions prove incorrect, actual results
may vary materially from those anticipated, estimated or projected. We expressly
disclaim any responsibility to update forward-looking statements. Accordingly,
past results and trends should not be used by investors to anticipate future
results or trends.

Some of the factors that might cause these differences include those set forth
below. You should carefully review all of these factors, and you should be aware
that there may be other factors that could cause these differences. These
forward-looking statements were based on information, plans and estimates at the
date of this Form 10-K, and we do not promise to update any forward-looking
statements to reflect changes in underlying assumptions or factors, new
information, future events or other changes.

2

WE CURRENTLY DO NOT HAVE AN OPERATING BUSINESS, BUT ALSO DO NOT INTEND TO PURSUE
A COURSE OF COMPLETE LIQUIDATION AND DISSOLUTION, AND ACCORDINGLY, THE VALUE OF
YOUR SHARES MAY DECREASE

We currently do not have any operating business; we are considering various
options for the use of our remaining assets, but have yet to approve any
definitive plans. In the meantime, we will continue to incur operating expenses
while we consider alternative operating plans. These plans may include business
combinations with or investments in other operating companies, or entering into
a completely new line of business. We have not yet identified any such
opportunities, and thus, you will not be able to evaluate the impact of such a
business strategy on the value of your stock. In addition, we cannot assure you
that we will be able to identify any appropriate business opportunities. Even if
we are able to identify business opportunities that our Board deems appropriate,
we cannot assure you that such a strategy will provide you with a positive
return on your investment, and it may in fact result in a substantial decrease
in the value of your stock. These factors will substantially increase the
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uncertainty, and thus the risk, of investing in our shares. Furthermore, we
currently do not intend to pursue a course of complete ligquidation and
dissolution. As a result, you should not expect any further cash distributions.

WE MAY NOT BE ABLE TO IDENTIFY OR FULLY CAPITALIZE ON ANY APPROPRIATE BUSINESS
OPPORTUNITIES

We are considering various options for the use of our remaining assets, which
may include business combinations, or a merger with, or investments in other
operating companies, or entering into a completely new line of business.
Nevertheless, we have not yet identified any appropriate business opportunities,
and, due to a variety of factors outside of our control, we may not be able to
identify or fully capitalize on any such opportunities. These factors include:
(1) competition from other potential acquirers and partners of and investors in
potential acquisitions, many of whom may have greater financial resources than
we do; (2) in specific cases, failure to agree on the terms of a potential
acquisition, such as the amount or price of our acquired interest, or
incompatibility between us and management of the company we wish to acquire; and
(3) the possibility that we may lack sufficient capital and/or expertise to
develop promising opportunities. Even if we are able to identify business
opportunities that our Board deems appropriate, we cannot assure you that such a
strategy will provide you with a positive return on your investment, and may in
fact result in a substantial decrease in the value of your stock. In addition,
if we enter into a combination with a business that has operating income, we
cannot assure you that we will be able to utilize all or even a portion of our
existing net operating loss carryover for federal or state tax purposes
following such a business combination. If we are unable to make use of our
existing net operating loss carryover, the tax advantages of such a combination
may be limited, which could negatively impact the price of our stock and the
value of your investment. These factors will substantially increase the
uncertainty, and thus the risk, of investing in our shares.

STOCKHOLDERS MAY BE LIABLE TO OUR CREDITORS FOR UP TO AMOUNTS RECEIVED FROM US
IF OUR RESERVES ARE INADEQUATE

If we pursue a plan of complete liquidation and dissolution, a Certificate of
Dissolution will be filed with the State of Delaware after such plan is approved
by our stockholders. Pursuant to the Delaware General Corporation Law, we will
continue to exist for three years after the dissolution becomes effective or for
such longer period as the Delaware Court of Chancery shall direct, for the
purpose of prosecuting and defending suits against us and enabling us gradually
to close our business, to dispose of our property, to discharge our liabilities
and to distribute to our stockholders any remaining assets. Under the Delaware
General Corporation Law, in the event we fail to create an adequate contingency
reserve for payment of our expenses and liabilities during this three-year
period, each stockholder could be held liable for payment to our creditors for
such stockholder's pro rata share of amounts owed to creditors in excess of the
contingency reserve. The liability of any stockholder would be limited, however,
to the amounts previously received by such stockholder from us (and from any
liquidating trust or trusts), including the cash distribution of $1.30 per share
paid to stockholders on November 3, 2003. Accordingly, in such event a
stockholder could be required to return all distributions previously made to
such stockholder. In such event, a stockholder could receive nothing from us
under a plan of complete liquidation and dissolution. Moreover, in the event a
stockholder has paid taxes on amounts previously received, a repayment of all or
a portion of such amount could result in a stockholder incurring a net tax cost
if the stockholder's repayment of an amount previously distributed does not
cause a commensurate reduction in taxes payable. There can be no assurance that
the contingency reserve maintained by us will be adequate to cover any expenses
and liabilities.
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OUR STOCK HAS BEEN DELISTED FROM THE NASDAQ NATIONAL MARKET, AND IS THEREFORE
SIGNIFICANTLY LESS LIQUID THAN BEFORE

Our stock has been delisted from trading on The Nasdaqg National Market by reason
of not maintaining listing requirements due to, among other things,
significantly reduced market price of our common stock. As a result, our common
stock currently trades over the counter on the Nasdag OTC Bulletin Board and the
ability of our stockholders to obtain liquidity and fair market prices for our
shares has been significantly impaired.

WE WILL CONTINUE TO INCUR THE EXPENSE OF COMPLYING WITH PUBLIC COMPANY REPORTING
AND OTHER REQUIREMENTS

We have an obligation to continue to comply with the applicable reporting
requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and other
applicable requirements including those under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
even though compliance with such requirements is economically burdensome. In
order to curtail expenses, if we elect to pursue a liquidation and dissolution
strategy, after we file our Certificate of Dissolution, we will seek relief from
the Securities and Exchange Commission from the reporting requirements under the
Exchange Act, which may or may not be granted. Until such relief is granted we
will continue to make obligatory Exchange Act filings. We anticipate that even
if such relief is granted in the future, we will continue to file current
reports on Form 8-K to disclose material events relating to our liquidation and
dissolution along with any other reports that the Securities and Exchange
Commission may require.

WE FACE AND MIGHT FACE INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY INFRINGEMENT CLAIMS THAT MIGHT BE
COSTLY TO RESOLVE

From time to time, we have received letters from corporations and other entities
suggesting that we review patents to which they claim rights or claiming that we
infringe on their intellectual property rights. Such claims may result in our
being involved in litigation. Although we sold our operating assets to eBay, we
still have exposure for liabilities relating to our business operations prior to
the sale. Further, we cannot assure you that third parties will not assert
claims in the future or that we will prevail against any such claims. We could
incur substantial costs to defend any claims relating to proprietary rights,
which would deplete our remaining cash assets. In addition, we are obligated
under certain agreements to indemnify the other party for claims that we
infringe on the proprietary rights of third parties. If we are required to
indemnify parties under these agreements, our remaining assets could be
substantially reduced. If someone asserts a claim against us relating to
proprietary technology or information, we might seek settlement of such claim.
We might not be able to agree to a settlement on reasonable terms, or at all.
The failure to obtain a settlement on acceptable terms would decrease cash for
other purposes.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

The Company's headquarters are located in New York City, in an office maintained
by Barington Capital Group, L.P., a limited partnership whose general partner is
a corporation of which James Mitarotonda is Chairman, President and Chief
Executive Officer. Mr. Mitarotonda is a director of the Company and our former
President and Chief Executive Officer. William Fox, the President, Chief
Executive Officer and a director of the Company, is the Vice Chairman of
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Barington.

On January 20, 2004, the Company executed a settlement agreement with Acquaport
Unicorn, Inc., the landlord of the Company's Woburn, Massachusetts headquarters,
providing for termination of the Company's lease in consideration of a cash
payment of $1.2 million. In March 2004, the cash payment was made and on April
9, 2004 our last employee was terminated and the premises vacated.

On September 28, 2004, the Company executed a settlement agreement with Regal
House Limited, the landlord of the Company's London, UK, headquarters, providing
for termination of the Company's lease in consideration of a

cash payment of approximately $463,000. The cash payment was drawn from the
security deposit of approximately $569,000 held by the landlord. The remaining
balance of $106,000 was returned to us.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
We are a defendant in certain purported class action lawsuits filed by

individual shareholders in the U.S. District Court for the Southern District of
New York against Dynabazaar, Scott Randall (former President, Chief Executive

Officer and Chairman of the Board of Dynabazaar), John Belchers (former Chief
Financial Officer of Dynabazaar), U.S. Bancorp Piper Jaffray Inc., DB Alex.
Brown (as successor—-in-interest to Deutsche Bank Securities, Inc.), Robertson
Stephens, Inc. (formerly known as FleetBoston Robertson Stephens, Inc.), Banc of
America Securities, LLC, Goldman Sachs & Co., Inc., Merrill Lynch, Pierce,
Fenner & Smith, Incorporated, Citigroup Global Markets, Inc. (as
successor—-in-interest to Salomon Smith Barney, Inc.), and J.P. Morgan
Securities, Inc. (as successor-in-interest to Hambrecht & Quist, LLC). The

lawsuits have been filed by individual shareholders who purport to seek class
action status on behalf of all other similarly situated persons who purchased
the common stock of Dynabazaar between March 14, 2000 and December 6, 2000. The
lawsuits allege that certain underwriters of Dynabazaar's initial public
offering solicited and received excessive and undisclosed fees and commissions
in connection with that offering. The lawsuits further allege that the
defendants violated the federal securities laws by issuing a registration
statement and prospectus in connection with Dynabazaar's initial public offering
which failed to accurately disclose the amount and nature of the commissions and
fees paid to the underwriter defendants. On or about October 8, 2002, the Court
entered an Order dismissing the claims asserted against certain individual
defendants in the consolidated actions, including the claims against Mr. Randall
and Mr. Belchers, without any payment from these individuals or the Company. On
or about February 19, 2003, the Court entered an Order dismissing with prejudice
the claims asserted against the Company under Section 10 (b) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. As a result, the only claims that remain
against the Company are those arising under Section 11 of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended. The Company has entered into an agreement-in-principle to
settle the remaining claims in the litigation. The proposed settlement will
result in a dismissal with prejudice of all claims and will include a release of
all claims that were brought or could have been brought against the Company and
its present and former directors and officers. It is anticipated that any
payment to the plaintiff class and their counsel will be funded by the Company's
directors' and officers' liability insurance and that no direct payment will be
made by the Company. The parties have negotiated and executed a definitive
settlement agreement. The proposed settlement provides that the class members in
the class action cases brought against the participating issuer defendants will
be guaranteed a recovery of $1 billion by insurers of the participating issuer
defendants. If recoveries totaling $1 billion or more are obtained by the class
members from the underwriter defendants, however, the monetary obligations to
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the class members under the proposed settlement will be satisfied. In addition,
Dynabazaar and any other participating issuer defendants will be required to
assign to the class members certain claims that they may have against the
underwriters of their IPO's. The proposed settlement contemplates that any
amounts necessary to fund the settlement or settlement-related expenses would
come from participating issuers' directors and officers' liability insurance
policy proceeds as opposed to funds of the participating issuer defendants
themselves. A participating issuer defendant could be required to contribute to
the costs of the settlement if that issuer's insurance coverage were
insufficient to pay that issuer's allocable share of the settlement costs. If
ultimately approved by the Court, the proposed settlement would result in the
dismissal, with prejudice, of all claims in the litigation against Dynabazaar
and all of the other issuer defendants who have elected to participate in the
proposed settlement, together with the current or former officers and directors
of participating issuers who were named as individual defendants. The proposed
settlement does not provide for the resolution of any claims against the
underwriter defendants, and the litigation as against those defendants is
continuing. Consummation of the proposed settlement remains conditioned upon
obtaining approval by the Court. On September 1, 2005, the Court preliminarily
approved the proposed settlement, directed that notice of the terms of the
proposed settlement be provided to class members, and scheduled a fairness
hearing for April 24, 2006, at which objections to the proposed settlement will
be heard. Thereafter, the Court will determine whether to grant final approval
to the proposed settlement.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

Not applicable.

PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND
ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

PRICE RANGE OF COMMON STOCK

Our common stock trades on the Nasdag OTC Bulletin Board under the symbol
"FAIM.OB." Our common stock was quoted on the Nasdag National Market, but was
delisted on June 24, 2004. The following table sets forth, for the periods
indicated, the high and low sale price per share of our common stock on the
NASDAQ OTC Bulletin Board.

HIGH LOW
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005:
First QUATE e v it ittt ettt et et eee e $ 0.35 S 0.30
Second QUATLLET vttt ittt ettt et ettt S 0.34 S 0.30
Third QUATLLET & it ittt et et et e ettt eeeeannn S 0.41 S 0.31
Fourth QUATE T v ittt e ittt et it e et eee e $ 0.39 $ 0.36
HIGH LOW
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004:
First QUATL e v it ittt it e et et e et eee e S 0.44 S 0.32
Second QUATLLET vt ittt ettt et ettt $ 0.39 S 0.30
Third QUATLLET & it ittt ittt et et e e ee e eeeeannn S 0.31 $ 0.26
Fourth QUATE T vttt ittt et i et eee e S 0.35 S 0.27

As of March 30, 2006, there were approximately 171 holders of record of our
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common stock.

We have not paid or declared any cash dividends on shares of our common stock
other than a $1.30 per share cash distribution that was declared in October 2003
and paid in November 2003 to stockholders of record on October 20, 2003. The
total amount of the distribution was approximately $35 million. Any future
determinations as to the payment of dividends on our common stock will depend
upon our capital requirements, earnings, liquidity and such other factors as our
Board of Directors may consider.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM SALE OF REGISTERED SECURITIES

On March 17, 2000, we completed the sale of 5,750,000 shares of our common stock
in an initial public offering pursuant to a Registration Statement on Form S-1
(File No. 333-92677), as amended, that was declared effective by the Securities
and Exchange Commission on March 13, 2000. The proceeds to us from the initial
public offering were $89.1 million, net of offering expenses. We estimate that,
as of December 31, 2005, approximately $35.3 million has been used for working
capital purposes, including approximately $5.1 million used for the purchase of
equipment, $4.0 million to repurchase 3.1 million shares of our common stock
from our founder, $35 million for the cash distribution paid in November 2003
and $3.5 million for the September 2003 Series B repurchase and liquidation
preference. At December 31, 2005, substantially all of the remaining net
proceeds (approximately $9 million) were held in investments in interest-bearing
accounts.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected financial data should be read in conjunction with our
consolidated financial statements and related notes and with "Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations"”

and other financial data included elsewhere in this Report. The consolidated
statement of operations data for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, 2003,
2002 and 2001 and the consolidated balance sheet data as of December 31, 2005,
2004, 2003, 2002 and 2001 are derived from our audited consolidated financial
statements.

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DE

(IN THOUSANDS,

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA:
LS V=00 5= S —— S

Total Operating EXPENSES v vt ittt ee e et eeneeeeeeeaneeeeenns 1,119
Loss from Operations ... i it ittt ittt e e e e e e e (1,119)
Net IncCome (L10SS) v vt ittt ittt e e ettt ettt ettt ee e 1,256

Basic and diluted net income (loss) per share ................ S 0.05 S

(2,227)
(1,962)

27,024
27,024

$

$

EXCEPT PER

6,673
12,752
(6,079
(4,599

(0.18
26,796
26,796

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DE

Shares used to compute basic net income (loss) per share ..... 25,165
Shares used to compute diluted net income (loss) per share 25,259
2005 2004
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET DATA:

Cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities ............. $ 9,125 $ 8,989
Working capital ...ttt it et e e e e e e e ettt e e 9,260 9,124
Total ASSEE S vttt ittt ettt et e et et e ettt e e e e 10,462 12,648
Total stockholders' equUity ...ttt ittt et eeeeeeenns 10,256 10,452

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS
OF OPERATIONS

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K, including "Management's Discussions and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" in Item 7, contains
forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934. We caution investors that any forward-looking statements presented in this
Annual Report and presented elsewhere by management from time to time are based
on management's beliefs and assumptions made by, and information currently
available to, management. When used, the words "anticipate", "believe",
"expert", "intend", "may", "plan", "estimate", "project", "should", "will be"
and similar expressions which do not relate solely to historical matters are
intended to identify forward-looking statements. Such statements are subject to
risks, uncertainties and assumptions and are not guarantees of future
performance, which may be affected by known and unknown risks, trends,
uncertainties and factors that are beyond our control, including, but not
limited to, the risks discussed in "Risk Factors" in Item 1A of this Annual
Report. Should one or more of these risks or uncertainties materialize, or
should underlying assumptions prove incorrect, actual results may vary
materially from those anticipated, estimated or projected. We expressly disclaim
any responsibility to update forward-looking statements. Accordingly, past
results and trends should not be used by investors to anticipate future results
or trends.

The following discussion of our financial condition and results of operations
should be read in conjunction with the description of our business and our
financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States, and the notes to those
statements included elsewhere in this Report.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

While our significant accounting policies are more fully described in Note 2,
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, to our consolidated financial
statements included in this Report, we believe the following accounting policies
to be critical:

Revenue Recognition. In accordance with SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 101,
we do not record revenue until all of the following criteria are met: persuasive
evidence of an arrangement exists; services have been rendered; our price to our
customer is fixed and determinable; and collectibility is reasonably assured. We
derive revenue from application fees, transaction fees and professional services
fees. Application fees consist of implementation fees and fixed monthly hosting,
support and operating fees. We record implementation fees as deferred revenue
and recognize these fees as revenue, ratably, over the contract period which
approximates the life of our customer relationship. We recognize fixed monthly

THOUSANDS

$ 10,697
5,547
16, 630
12,314
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hosting fees as revenue in the month that the service is provided. We recognize
transaction fees as revenue, net of amounts paid to our customers, at the
completion of the listing period. We record certain professional services fees
related to ongoing service relationships as deferred revenue and recognize these
fees as revenue ratably over the remaining contract period. Professional
services fees which represent a separate earnings process and are unrelated to
ongoing services are recognized as revenue in the period the service is
provided.

We follow the guidance of Emerging Issues Task Force issue No. 01-09, Accounting
for Consideration Given by a Vendor to a Customer or a Reseller of the Vendor's
Products ("EITF 01-09"), in determining whether consideration, including equity
instruments, given to a customer should be recorded as an operating expense or a
reduction of revenue recognized from that same customer. Consideration given to
a customer is recorded as a reduction of revenue unless both of the following
conditions are met:

o We receive an identifiable benefit in exchange for the consideration,
and the identified benefit is sufficiently separable from the
customer's purchase of the Company's products and services such that
the Company could have purchased the products from a third party; and

o We can reasonably estimate the fair value of the benefit received.

If both of the conditions are met, we record consideration paid to customers as
an expense. Consideration, including equity instruments, not meeting the above
criteria, is recorded as a reduction of revenue to the extent the Company has
recorded cumulative revenue from the customer or reseller. Any consideration in
excess of cumulative revenue recognized from the customer or reseller is
recorded as an operating expense.

Identifying transactions that are within the scope of EITF 01-09, determining
whether those transactions meet the criteria for recognition as an expense and
determining the methodology of cost recognition associated with these
arrangements requires us to make significant judgments. If we reached different
conclusions, reported revenue could be materially different.

Deferred tax assets. We record a valuation allowance to reduce our deferred tax
assets to the amount that is more likely than not to be realized. While we
consider future taxable income and tax planning strategies in assessing the need
for the valuation allowance, if management were to determine that the Company
would be able to realize deferred tax assets in the future in excess of the net
recorded amount, an adjustment to the deferred tax asset would affect the
provision for income taxes in the period such determination was made.

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (R), "Share-Based Payment"
("SFAS No. 123(R)"). SFAS No. 123 (R) supersedes APB No. 25 and its related

implementation guidance. SFAS No. 123 (R) establishes standards for the
accounting for transactions in which an entity exchanges its equity instruments
for goods or services. It also addresses transactions in which an entity incurs
liabilities in exchange for goods or services that are based on the fair value
of the entity's equity instruments or that may be settled by the issuance of
those equity instruments. SFAS No. 123 (R) focuses primarily on accounting for
transactions in which an entity obtains employee services in share-based payment
transactions. SFAS No. 123 (R) requires a public entity to measure the cost of
employee services received in exchange for an award of equity instruments based
on the grant-date fair value of the award (with limited exceptions). That cost
will be recognized over the period during which an employee is required to
provide service in exchange for the award during the requisite service period
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(usually the vesting period). No compensation costs are recognized for equity
instruments for which employees do not render the requisite service. The
grant-date fair value of employee share

options and similar instruments will be estimated using option-pricing models
adjusted for the unique characteristics of those instruments (unless observable
market prices for the same or similar instruments are available). If an equity
award is modified after the grant date, incremental compensation cost will be
recognized in an amount equal to the excess of the fair value of modified award
over the fair value of the original award immediately before the modifications.
The Company has not completed its evaluation of SFAS No. 123 (R) but expects the
adoption of this new standard will not have a material impact on operating
results of the Company.

In May 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154, "Accounting Changes and Error
Corrections," which replaces APB Opinion No. 20, "Accounting Changes," and SFAS
No. 3, "Reporting Accounting Changes in Interim Financial Statements," and
changes the requirements for the accounting for and reporting of a change in
accounting principle. This Statement applies to all voluntary changes in
accounting principle and to changes required by an accounting pronouncement in
the unusual instance that the pronouncement does not include specific transition
provisions. When a pronouncement includes specific transition provisions, those
provisions should be followed.

APB Opinion No. 20 previously required that most voluntary changes in accounting
principle be recognized by including in net income of the period of the change
the cumulative effect of changing to the new accounting principle. This
Statement requires retrospective application to prior periods' financial
statements of changes in accounting principle. When it is impracticable to
determine the cumulative effect of applying a change in accounting principle to
all prior periods, this Statement requires that the new accounting principle be
applied as if it were adopted prospectively from the earliest date practicable.
This Statement defines retrospective application as the application of a
different accounting principle to prior accounting periods as if that principle
had always been used or as the adjustment of previously issued financial
statements to reflect a change in the reporting entity. This Statement also
redefines restatement as the revising of previously issued financial statements
to reflect the correction of an error. Finally, this Statement requires that a
change in depreciation, amortization, or depletion method for long-lived,
nonfinancial assets be accounted for as a change in accounting estimate affected
by a change in accounting principle.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005, 2004, AND 2003

For the year ended December 31, 2005 we had net income of approximately $1.3
million. For the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 our net loss was
approximately $2.0 million and $4.7 million, respectively. Our net income for
2005 is attributable to the receipt of approximately $2.0 million, plus
interest, held in escrow in accordance with the Asset Purchase Agreement entered
into with eBay, and interest income of approximately $400,000 offset by expenses
of approximately $1.1 million.

REVENUE

Total revenue was $0 for 2005 and 2004 and $6,673 in 2003. The decrease in
revenues 1s due to the cessation of the Company's online auction business.

OPERATING EXPENSES
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COST OF REVENUE

Cost of revenue was $0 in 2005 and 2004 and $2.1 million in 2003. Cost of
revenue consisted of costs for direct customer support and support to end-users
of our customers' sites, depreciation of network equipment, fees paid to network
providers for bandwidth and monthly fees paid to third-party network providers.
The decrease in 2004 was due to the cessation of the Company's online auction
business.

Gross profit was 0.0%, 0.0% and 68.8% of total revenue for 2005, 2004, and 2003,
respectively. This decrease in gross profit from 2003 was attributable to the
decrease in revenue discussed above.

SALES AND MARKETING

Sales and marketing expenses were $0 for each of 2005 and 2004, and $2.0 million
for 2003. The decrease in 2005 and 2004 is attributable to the cessation of the
Company's online auction business.

DEVELOPMENT AND ENGINEERING

Development and engineering expenses were $0 in 2005 and 2004 and $1.1 million
for 2003. The decrease for 2004 is attributable to the cessation of the
Company's online auction business.

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE

General and administrative expenses were $1.1 million in 2005 and $2.2 million
in 2004, a reduction of 50%. Expenses in 2005 were primarily related to the
payment of liability insurance premiums of approximately $383,000, board of
director fees of approximately $134,000 and fees to Barington of approximately
$180,000. Expenses in 2004 were primarily related to the payment of liability
insurance premiums for the prior Board of $336,000 and the current Board of
$90,000 and costs associated with the settlement of leases in the United States
and the United Kingdom. General and administrative expenses in 2003 were $7.3
million. Contributing to the expenses in 2003 was the payment, in December of
that year, of $830,000 termination pay to all our remaining employees, together
with a patent litigation settlement of $210,000 and an increase in the premium
for directors and officers' liability insurance.

UNUTILIZED OFFICE SPACE CHARGE

In the fourth quarter of 2003, we recorded charges of $160,000 for unutilized
office space at our previous headquarters in Woburn, Massachusetts. This charge
included rent and other related costs for a significant portion of our leased
space which has been vacated for the remaining lease term and the write-down of
related leasehold improvements and furniture and fixtures. In 2004, we
terminated our lease for this property.

GAIN ON SALE OF ASSETS

On June 20, 2003, the Company entered into an Asset Purchase Agreement with eBay
to sell substantially all of the Company's technology and business assets to
eBay for $4.5 million in cash. On September 4, 2003, the Company closed on the
sale of assets to eBay.

In connection with the transaction the parties entered into the Escrow Agreement
which provided that $2 million of the consideration be held in escrow for a
two-year period in order to secure the Company's indemnification obligations.

14
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The Company estimated its potential liability under the indemnification to be $2
million in accordance with FASB Interpretation No. 45 "Guarantor's Accounting
and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of
Indebtedness of Others" ("FIN 45") and recorded such liability as a reduction in
the gain on the sale of assets.

The Company recorded a gain on the sale of assets of $1,183,000 based on the
proceeds less direct costs of $1,338,000 and the indemnification liability noted
above, which is recorded in the results of operations for the year ended
December 31, 2003.

On September 6, 2005, the Company received a payment of $2,045,982 from Zions
First National Bank Pursuant to the Escrow Agreement. The payment represented
the $2 million held in escrow under the terms and conditions of the Asset
Purchase Agreement we entered into with eBay together with $45,982 of accrued
interest. In accordance with the Stock Purchase Agreement entered into with
former director Lloyd Miller, III and certain affiliated entities, the Company
paid to Mr. Miller and certain affiliated entities a total of approximately
$278,000 from the proceeds of the Escrow Agreement, which was recorded as
additional consideration for the stock purchase.

10

INTEREST INCOME, NET

Interest income was $375,000, $265,000 and $297,000 in 2005, 2004, and 2003
respectively. The increase of interest income for 2004 to 2005 is a result of
increasing interest rates. The decrease in interest income for 2004 and 2003 was
due principally to lower average cash, cash equivalents and marketable
securities balances during these periods as a result of cash used in operating
activities and to a lesser extent a decrease in interest rates.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Prior to our initial public offering in March 2000, we financed our operations
primarily through private sales of capital stock, the net proceeds of which
totaled $27.1 million as of December 31, 1999. In March 2000, we sold 5,750,000
shares of common stock in our initial public offering. The proceeds to us from
the initial public offering were $89.1 million, net of offering expenses. At
December 31, 2005, cash and cash equivalents totaled $9.1million.

Net cash used in operating activities was $412,000 for 2005, $2.3 million for
2004, and $7.1 million for 2003.

Net cash used in operating activities of $412,000 in 2005 reflects a net profit
of $1.3 million, offset by a gain on the sale of assets of $2.0 million plus an
increase in other assets of $332,000.

Net cash used in operating activities in 2004 reflect a net loss of $2.0 million
reduced by an increase in other assets of $903,000. Net cash used in operating
activities reflect increases from unutilized lease costs of $1.2 million,
$838,000 from the accrued expenses and other miscellaneous increase.

In 2005, cash provided by investing activities was $2.0 million which is
attributable to the gain on the sale of assets.

In 2004, cash provided by investing activities decreased to $5.5 million from
$18.1 million in 2003. This decrease was primarily due to the sale of marketable
securities compared to the 2003 activity. During 2003, net cash provided by
investing activities was primarily due from the sale of marketable securities.
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In 2005, net cash used in financing activities was $1.4 million primarily for
the purchase of treasury stock from Lloyd Miller.

In 2004, net cash used in financing activities was $22,000, primarily from the
purchase of treasury stock. Net cash used in financing activities was $38.3
million in 2003 primarily from a cash distribution paid to shareholders of
record on October 20, 2003.

We expect to fund our operating expenses for 2006 from available cash. In
addition, we may utilize our cash resources to fund acquisitions or investments
in complementary businesses or technologies, though currently we have no
commitments for capital expenditures or strategic investments. We believe that
our current cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities will be sufficient
to meet our working capital and operating expenditure requirements for the near
future. Further, we do not have an operating business and consequently, we are
currently exploring various options for the use of our remaining assets,
including pursuit of a business strategy unrelated to our historical business.
Acquisition and/or operation of any future business strategy may require us to
obtain additional financing and/or capital. In the interim, we believe our cash
needs will primarily relate to costs associated with operating as a public
company, such as legal and accounting costs. If additional financing is
required, we may not be able to raise it on acceptable terms or at all.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO
None.
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FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK
None.
ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The Company's Consolidated Financial Statements are included in this Report
beginning at page F-1.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

On February 2, 2004, we dismissed PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as our independent
accountants and engaged Rothstein, Kass & Company, P.C. as our independent
auditors for the year ended December 31, 2003. We filed a current report on Form
8-K with the Securities and Exchange Commission with respect to this matter.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

As required by Rule 13a-15(b) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the "Exchange Act"), as of the end of the period covered by this
report, we carried out an evaluation under the supervision and with the
participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our
disclosure controls and procedures. In designing and evaluating our disclosure
controls and procedures, we recognize that any controls and procedures, no
matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of
achieving the desired control objectives, and our management necessarily was
required to apply its Jjudgment in evaluating and implementing possible controls
and procedures. The effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures is
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necessarily limited by the staff and other resources available to us. Based upon
that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
concluded that, as of the end of the period covered by this report, our
disclosure controls and procedures were effective, in that they provide
reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed by us in the
reports we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and
Exchange Commission's rules and forms. There was no change in our internal
control over financial reporting that occurred during the period covered by this
report that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, our internal control over financial reporting. In connection with these
rules, we will continue to review and document our disclosure controls and
procedures, including our internal controls and procedures for financial
reporting, and may from time to time make changes aimed at enhancing their
effectiveness and to ensure that our systems evolve with our business.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.
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PART III
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT
Directors

The number of directors comprising our board of directors (the "Board") is
currently fixed at four. Each Board member holds office for a term of three
years or until his or her respective successor has been duly elected and
qualified. Our Board is divided into three classes, consisting of two Class I
directors (William J. Fox and Raymond Steele); one Class II director (Rory J.
Cowan); and one Class III director (James A Mitarotonda) .

Set forth below is certain information regarding the directors of Dynabazaar,
Inc.

Position with the

Name Age Company Director Since
William J. FOX. ' eweenn.. 49 President, Chief 2004
Executive Officer and
Director
Rory J. COWaAN. e vvee e eennnnsn 53 Chairman of the Board of 2001
Directors (1) (2) (3)
James A. Mitarotonda....... 51 Director 2003
Raymond Steele............. 71 Director (1) (2) (3) 2004

(1) Member of Audit Committee
(2) Member of Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee
(3) Member of Compensation Committee

Mr. Fox has served as one of our directors and as our President and Chief
Executive Officer since December 2004. Mr. Fox was Chairman, President and Chief
Executive Officer of AKI Inc. and President and CEO of AKI Holdings, Inc.
(collectively, "AKI"), an international specialty marketing services business,
from February 1999 until October 2004. From September 1991 until January 1999,
Mr. Fox was an executive of Revlon Inc. (NYSE:REV) and of Revlon Consumer
Products Corporation ("RCPC"), holding various positions, including Senior
Executive Vice President of Revlon, Inc., President of Strategic and Corporate
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Development, Revlon Worldwide, Chief Executive Officer of Revlon Technologies,
and, until December 1997, was Chief Financial Officer of Revlon, Inc. Mr. Fox
was concurrently a Senior Vice President of MacAndrews & Forbes Holdings Inc.
("MacAndrews"). Mr. Fox was a director of Revlon Inc. and RCPC from 1994 until
April 1999. At various times, beginning in April 1983, Mr. Fox was also an
executive officer of several affiliates of MacAndrews and Revlon, including
Technicolor Inc., The Coleman Company, New World Entertainment and Revlon Group
Incorporated. Mr. Fox served as a director and non-executive Co-Chairman of
Loehmann's Holdings Inc. from October 2000 until October 2004. Mr. Fox has
served as a director of L Q Corporation, Inc. (OTC BB:LQCI.OB), a provider of
professional security, compliance, advisory and investigatory services, since
December 2003 and has served as its President and Chief Executive Officer since
October 2004. Mr. Fox also serves as Vice Chairman of Barington Capital Group,
L.P. and certain of its affiliates and as a director of Nephros, Inc.

(AMEX:NEP) .

Mr. Cowan has served as one of our directors since March 2001. Mr. Cowan is the
founder of Lionbridge Technologies, Inc. ("Lionbridge"), a provider of
globalization products and services for worldwide deployment of technology and
information-based products, where he has served as Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer since September 1996. From September 1996 to March 2000,
Mr. Cowan also served as President of Lionbridge. Before founding Lionbridge,
Mr. Cowan served as Chief Executive Officer of Interleaf, Inc., a document
automation software services company, from October 1996 to January 1997. From
May 1995 to June 1996, Mr. Cowan served as Chief Executive Officer of Stream
International, Inc., a software and services provider and a division of R.R.
Donnelley & Sons ("R.R. Donnelley"), a provider of commercial print and
print-related services. Mr. Cowan joined R.R. Donnelley in 1988 and served most
recently as Executive Vice President from 1991 to June 1996. Before joining R.R.
Donnelley, Mr. Cowan was founder of CSA Press of Hudson, Mass., a software
duplication firm, and held positions at Compugraphic Corporation, an automated
publishing hardware firm.
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Mr. Mitarotonda has served as one of our directors since September 2003 and as
our President and Chief Executive Officer from January 2004 to December 17,
2004. Mr. Mitarotonda is Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive
Officer of Barington Capital Group, L.P., an investment firm that he co-founded
in November 1991. Mr. Mitarotonda is also Chairman of the Board, President and
Chief Executive Officer of Barington Companies Investors, LLC, the general
partner of Barington Companies Equity Partners, L.P., a small capitalization
value fund. In addition, he is the Chairman of the Board, President and Chief
Executive Officer of Barington Companies Advisors, LLC, the investment advisor
of Barington Companies Offshore Fund, Ltd., a small capitalization value fund.
Mr. Mitarotonda is also a director of L Q Corporation, Inc. (OTCBB:LQCI.OB) and
A. Schulman, Inc. (NASDAQ:SHLM). He also has served as L Q Corporation, Inc.'s
Co-Chief Executive Officer and Co-Chairman from April 2003 to May 2004, its sole
Chief Executive Officer from May 2004 to October 2004 and as its sole Chairman
since May 2004. In May 1988, Mr. Mitarotonda co-founded Commonwealth Associates,
an investment banking, brokerage and securities trading firm. Mr. Mitarotonda
served as Chairman of the Board and Co-Chief Executive Officer of JMJ Management
Company Inc., the general partner of Commonwealth Associates.

Mr. Steele has served as one of our directors since December 2004. Mr. Steele is
a retired businessman. Prior to his retirement, he held various senior positions
such as Executive Vice President of Pacholder Associates, Inc. (from August 1990
until September 1993), Executive Advisor at the Nickert Group (from 1989 through
1990), and Vice President, Trust Officer and Chief Investment Officer of the
Provident Bank (from 1984 through 1988). Mr. Steele currently serves on the
board of directors of American BankNote Corporation (OTC BB:ABNTQ), Globix

18



Edgar Filing: DYNABAZAAR INC - Form 10-K

Corporation (AMEX:GEX), Motient Corporation (PNK:MNCP) and Horizon Offshore,
Inc. He is also a member of the board of directors of Newcastle Holdings, Inc.
(PNK:HOFF) .

There are no family relationships among any of our directors or executive
officers.

Executive Officers
Melvyn Brunt has served as our Chief Financial Officer since January 1, 2004.
William J. Fox has served as our President and Chief Executive Officer since

December 17, 2004.

As of March 21, 2006, the following persons were serving as our executive
officers:

Position with the Held Office
Name Age Company Since
William J. FOX. v eweenn.. 49 President, Chief 2004

Executive Officer
and Director

Melvyn Brunt............... 62 Chief Financial Officer 2004
and Secretary

Mr. Fox's biographical information is detailed under "Item 10-Directors and
Executive Officers of the Registrant-Directors" above.

Mr. Brunt has served as our Chief Financial Officer and Secretary since January
2004. He has also served as Chief Financial Officer of Barington Capital Group,
L.P. since January 2002 and as Chief Financial Officer and Secretary to L Q
Corporation, Inc. (OTCBB:LQCI.OB) since April 2003. In addition, from January
2002 to May 2004, he served as Chief Financial Officer and Secretary to MM
Companies, Inc., now known as George Foreman Enterprises, Inc. (OTCBB:GFME.OB).
From 1985 to 2001, Mr. Brunt was a Director and Chief Financial Officer of
Davies Turner & Co., an international freight forwarding company with offices
throughout the United States. From 1996 to 2001, Mr. Brunt was President of Air
Mar, Inc., and a Director of TCX International Inc. Both of those companies
provided logistics support services to a wide variety of importing and exporting
companies.
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Identification of the Audit Committee

The Company has a separately-designated standing audit committee established in
accordance with the Exchange Act. The members of the audit committee are Raymond
Steele and Rory Cowan.

Audit Committee Financial Expert

The Board has determined that Mr. Steele qualifies as an audit committee
financial expert and that he is an independent director under the National
Association of Securities Dealers' listing standards and the applicable rules of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act").

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

The Company has adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics which applies to
directors, officers, senior management and certain other employees of the
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Company, including its principal executive officer, principal financial officer,
principal accounting officer or controller or persons performing similar
functions. The Company shall provide a copy of its Code of Business Conduct and
Ethics to any person without charge, upon request. Requests for a copy of the
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics can be made in writing to the following
address: Dynabazaar, Inc., 888 Seventh Avenue, 17th Floor, New York, New York
10019, Attn: Secretary.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16 (a) of the Exchange Act requires our executive officers and directors
and persons who beneficially own more than 10% of our common stock to file
reports of ownership and changes in ownership with the SEC and to furnish copies
to us.

Based upon a review of the reports furnished to us and representations made to
us, we believe that, during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005, all reports
required by Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act to be filed by our officers and
directors and 10% beneficial owners were filed on a timely basis.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
Summary Compensation Table

The following table provides information as to compensation paid by the Company
to our Chief Executive Officers and the other executive officer (collectively,
the "Named Executive Officers") for services rendered for the fiscal years ended
December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003.

Long Term
Compensation Awards

Annual Compensation Restricted
Name and Principal = ———mmmmmmm e Stock Number of
Position Year Salary ($) Bonus ($) Awards ($) Options (#)
William J. Fox (1) 2005 $ 60,000 S -— $ - -
President and Chief 2004 S 15,000 - $ 182,325(2) 561,000
Executive Officer 2003 - - - -
James A. Mitarotonda (3) 2005 $ - S - -
President and Chief 2004 —— —— —— 618,000 (4)
Executive Officer 2003 - - - -
Melvyn Brunt (5) 2005 S - S - $ - -
Chief Financial Officer 2004 - - - -
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(1) William J. Fox was elected as President and Chief Executive Officer on
December 17, 2004.

(2) On December 17, 2004, the Company granted Mr. Fox an option to purchase
561,000 shares of our common stock. The grant was comprised of (a)
incentive stock options to purchase 161,290 shares of our common stock at
$0.31, the closing price of our common stock on the grant date, (b)
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incentive stock options to purchase 161,290 shares of our common stock at
$0.34, 110% of the closing price of our common stock on the grant date, (c)
nonqualified stock options to purchase 119,210 shares of our common stock
at $0.31, the closing price of our common stock on the grant date, and (d)
nonqualified stock options to purchase 119,210 shares of our common stock
at $0.34, 110% of the closing price of our common stock on the grant date.
One-third of the shares granted pursuant to this option vest on November 1,
2005. The remainder of the shares granted pursuant to this option vest in
equal monthly installments from November 1, 2005 to November 1, 2007.

(3) James A. Mitarotonda served as President and Chief Executive Officer
from January 2004 until December 17, 2004. He continues to serve as a
director of the Company.

(4) On December 17, 2004, the Company granted Mr. Mitarotonda an option to
purchase 100,000 shares of our common stock. The grant was comprised of an
option to purchase 75,000 shares, which was provided to directors upon
election to the Board in 2003 but was never previously granted to Mr.
Mitarotonda, and an anniversary grant of options to purchase 25,000 shares.
The option is fully exercisable and was granted with an exercise price per
share equal to $0.31, the fair market value of our common stock on the
grant date. An option to purchase 320,000 shares was granted to Mr.
Mitarotonda pursuant to an administrative services agreement entered into
with Barington Capital Group, L.P. ("Barington") in December 2003, with an
exercise price per share equal to $0.33, the fair market value of our
common stock on the grant date. In addition, an option to purchase 198,000
shares was granted to Mr. Mitarotonda pursuant to an amended administrative
services agreement entered into with Barington in December 2004, with an
exercise price per share equal to $0.31, the fair market value of our
common stock on the grant date. Barington is a limited partnership whose
general partner is a corporation of which James Mitarotonda is Chairman,
President and Chief Executive Officer.

(5) Melvyn Brunt has served as Chief Financial Officer since January 1,
2004.

Option Grants in Fiscal Year 2005

No stock options or stock appreciation rights were granted to the Named
Executive Officers during the 2005 fiscal year.

Aggregate Option Exercises in Fiscal Year 2005 and Year End Option Values

The following table contains information concerning the exercise of stock
options during the 2005 fiscal year and the year-end value of unexercised
options for the Named Executive Officers. None of the Named Executive Officers
exercised any stock options during 2005.
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Value o
Money C
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Unexercised Options at FY End FY-End
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Acquired Value o e
Name on Exercise Realized Exercisable Unexercisable Exercis
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William J. Fox (2) 0 - 218,167 342,833
James A. Mitarotonda 0 —— 618,000 0

(1) Based on the fair market value of our common stock on December 31, 2005
of $0.36 per share, the closing sales price per share on that date on the
Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board.

(2) Comprised of 561,000 shares underlying options that are in-the-money as
of year end.

Director Compensation

In June 2004, our Board approved a plan that entitles our Chairman to cash
compensation of $20,000 upon initial election and upon the anniversary of being
appointed and our other non-employee directors to cash compensation of $10,000
upon initial election and on each anniversary of becoming a director during
their term of service. The plan also provides non-employee directors with $1,000
per meeting of the Board attended during their term of service. In addition, the
plan provides that attendance at committee meetings will be compensated at the
rate of $1,000 per meeting for members and $2,000 per meeting for the
chairperson.

Non-employee directors are entitled to fully vested option to purchase 50,000
shares of common stock upon initial election and a fully vested option to
purchase 25,000 shares of common stock on each anniversary of becoming a
director during their term of service.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation
The Compensation Committee is currently composed of independent, non-employee
directors. No interlocking relationships exist among our Board, Compensation
Committee or executive officers and the Board, Compensation Committee or
executive officers of any other company, nor has an interlocking relationship
existed in the past.
17
COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
AMONG DYNABAZAAR, INC., THE NASDAQ STOCK MARKET (U.S.) INDEX
AND THE RDG INTERNET COMPOSITE INDEX

[CHART OMITTED]
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ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The following table presents information with respect to beneficial ownership of
the common stock as of March 30, 2006 by:

o each person known by us to beneficially own more than 5% of the common
stock;

o individuals serving as our Named Executive Officers;

o each of our directors and the nominees for director; and

o all executive officers and directors as a group.
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Except as otherwise noted, the address of each person/entity listed in the table
is c/o Dynabazaar, Inc., 888 Seventh Avenue, 17th Floor, New York, NY 10019. The
table includes all shares of common stock issuable within 60 days of March 30,
2006 upon the exercise of options and other rights beneficially owned by the
indicated stockholders on that date. Beneficial ownership is determined in
accordance with the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission and includes
voting and investment power with respect to all shares of common stock. To our
knowledge, except under applicable community property laws or as otherwise
indicated, the persons named in the table have sole voting and sole investment
control with respect to all shares of common stock beneficially owned. The
applicable percentage of ownership for each stockholder is based on 23,410,144
shares of common stock outstanding as of March 30, 2006 together with applicable
options for that stockholder. Shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of
options and other rights beneficially owned are deemed outstanding for the
purpose of computing the percentage ownership of the person holding those
options and other rights, but are not deemed outstanding for computing the
percentage ownership of any other person.

Shares Beneficially

Owned
Name of Beneficial Owner Number Percent
Ticketmaster 2,225,000 (1) 9.50%
3701 Wilshire Boulevard
Los Angeles, CA 90010
Barington Capital Group, L.P. 2,936,360(2) 12.54%
888 Seventh Avenue, 17th Floor
New York, NY 10019
Don C. Whitaker 1,685,101 (3) 7.20%
23 Beechwood
Irvine, CA 92604
David T. Lu 1,777,957 (4) 7.59%
c/o Hedgehog Capital, LLC
1147 E. Putnam Ave #320
Riverside, CT 06878
Jay Gottlieb 1,465,359 (5) 6.26%
27 Misty Brook Lane
New Fairfield, CT 06812
Melvyn Brunt 100,000 (6) *
Rory J. Cowan 100,000 (7) *
William J. Fox 218,167(8) *
James Mitarotonda 2,047,330(9) 8.75%
Raymond Steele 75,000 (10) *

All executive officers and directors as a group
(consisting of 7 persons) (6)-(10) 2,540,497 (11) 10.85%
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(*) Represents less than 1% of the outstanding shares of common stock.

(1) This information is based on a Schedule 13D filed by Ticketmaster
(formerly Ticketmaster Online-CitySearch, Inc.) with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on June 25, 2003.

(2) This information is based solely on a Schedule 13D, as amended, filed
by Barington Companies Equity Partners, L.P., Ramius Capital Group, LLC,
Ramius Halifax Partners, L.P., MM Companies, Inc., Jewelcor Management,
Inc., Barington Capital Group, L.P., Ramius Securities, LLC and Starboard
Value & Opportunity Fund with the SEC on May 25, 2004, reporting a combined
ownership of 2,785,560 shares of our common stock by these reporting
entities, and (i) a Form 4 filed by James Mitarotonda with the SEC on June
9, 2004, reporting the acquisition of 20,800 shares by Barington Capital
Group, L.P. on June 7, 2004; (ii) a Form 4 filed by James Mitarotonda with
the SEC on August 25, 2005, reporting the acquisition of 105,000 shares by
Barington Capital Group, L.P. on August 23, 2005; and (iii) a Form 4 filed
by James Mitarotonda with the SEC on March 29, 2006, reporting the
acquisition on March 28, 2006 of 25,000 shares of common stock issuable
upon the exercise of options.

(3) This information is based on a Schedule 13D/A filed by Don C. Whitaker,
Don C. Whitaker, Jr. and Don. C. Whitaker, Inc. with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on July 24, 2003. According to such Schedule 13D/A,
1,685,101 of these shares are beneficially owned by Don C. Whitaker,
180,000 are beneficially owned by Don C. Whitaker, Jr. and 118,000 are
beneficially owned by Don C. Whitaker, Inc. Don C. Whitaker and Don C.
Whitaker, Jr. each have sole responsibility to vote and dispose of their
respective shares. Don C. Whitaker and Don C. Whitaker, Jr. share voting
power with regards to the shares held in the name of Don C. Whitaker, Inc.

(4) This information is based on a Schedule 13G filed by David T. Lu and
Hedgehog Capital LLC with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July
25, 2003. According to such Schedule 13G, all of these shares are
beneficially owned by Mr. Lu, and Hedgehog Capital LLC claims beneficial
ownership of 1,200,883 of the shares. As the managing member of Hedgehog
Capital LLC, Mr. Lu claims sole responsibility to vote and dispose of the
shares reported on the Schedule 13G.

(5) This information is based on a Schedule 13D filed by Jay Gottlieb with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 8, 2005. According to such
Schedule 13D, 1,104,389 of these shares are owned by Mr. Gottlieb, 182,985
are owned by the Rick Gottlieb 2004 Irrevocable Trust and 177,985 are
beneficially owned by the Lauren Gottlieb 2004 Irrevocable Trust. The
trusts are for the benefit of Mr. Gottlieb's adult children. Mr. Gottlieb,
as trustee of both trusts, has sole responsibility to vote and dispose of
these shares as well as the shares in his name. Mr. Gottlieb disclaims
beneficial ownership of any such shares held by him as trustee for the
benefit of his adult children

(6) Consists of 100,000 shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise
of options.

(7) Consists of 100,000 shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise
of options.

(8) Consist of 218,167 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of
options.
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(9) Includes 1,404,330 shares of common stock beneficial owned by Barington
L.P., entities
which are directly or indirectly controlled by Mr. Mitarotonda. Mr.

Mitarotonda disclaims beneficial ownership of such shares except to the

Capital Group, L.P. and Barington Companies Equity Partners,

extent of his pecuniary interest therein. Also includes 643,000 shares of

common stock issuable upon the exercise of options granted to Mr.

Mitarotonda.

(10) Consists of 75,000 shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise

of options.

(11) Includes 1,036,167 shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise

of options.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table provides information as of December 31, 2005 regarding
shares of common stock of the Company that may be issued under our existing

equity compensation plans, including the Company's 1997 Stock Option Plan
"1997 Plan"), 1999 Stock Option Plan (the "1999 Plan"), and 2000 Stock Option

and Incentive Plan (the "2000 Plan") and the Company's 2000 Employee Stock

Purchase Plan (the "ESPP").

Number of

(the

Number of
securities
remaining
available for
future issuance

securities Weighted average under equity
to be issued exercise price compensation
upon exercise of outstanding plan (excluding
of outstanding options, securities
options, warrants warrants and referenced in
Plan category and rights (a) rights (b) column (a)) (c)
Equity compensation
plans approved by
security holders (1) 3,744,939 (2) S 1.23 2,878,025 (3)
Equity compensation
plans not approved by
security holders (4) 1,106,598 $ 1.70 1,543,152
TOTAL 4,851,537 $ 1.34 4,421,177

(1) Consists of shares from the 1997 Plan, 1999 Plan, and the 2000 Plan.

(2) Does not include purchase rights accruing under the ESPP because the
purchase price (and therefore the number of shares to be purchased) will

not be determined until the end of the purchase period.

(3) Includes shares available for future issuance under the ESPP.

(4) Consists of shares from the 2000 Employee Plan.
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ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

In connection with the Company's cessation of its online auction business, the
Company relocated its principal executive offices as of January 1, 2004 to 888
Seventh Avenue, 17th Floor, New York, New York 10019, an office maintained by
Barington Capital Group, L.P. ("Barington"), a limited partnership whose general
partner is a corporation of which James Mitarotonda is Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Mitarotonda is a director of the Company and our
former President and Chief Executive Officer. William Fox, the President, Chief

Executive Officer and a director of the Company,
Barington.

Pursuant to an administrative services agreement
in December 2003 (which ran through December 31,
Barington a monthly fee of $8,000 for performing

is the Vice Chairman of

we entered into with Barington
2004), the Company paid
certain administrative services

on behalf of the Company. In connection with the agreement, the Company granted
to James Mitarotonda an option to purchase 320,000 shares of our common stock.
The option is fully exercisable and was granted with an exercise price per share
equal to $0.33, the fair market value of our common stock on the grant date.

The Company entered into an amended administrative services agreement with
Barington dated as of December 17, 2004. Under the amended agreement, which runs
through December 31, 2006, Barington is to be paid a fee of $15,000 per month
for performing certain administrative, accounting and other services on behalf
of the Company. As of March 1, 2006, the Company and Barington agreed to reduce
the fee to $7,500 per month. In addition, Barington is to be paid a fee of $175
an hour for any legal services provided by Barington on behalf of the Company at
the Company's request. The Company has also agreed that in the event that
Barington identifies for the Company at its request a business transaction such
as a merger, acquisition or joint venture, and/or provides the Company with
financial consulting or merger and acquisition services in connection with such
business transaction, the Company will pay Barington a fee to be agreed upon
between Barington and the Board of Directors of the Company. In connection with
the amended agreement, the Company granted options to certain designees of
Barington to purchase, in the aggregate, 320,000 shares of the Company's common
stock. The options were granted with an exercise price per share equal to $0.31,
the fair market value of the Company's common stock on the grant date.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The public accounting firm of Rothstein Kass & Company, P.C. has served as our
independent accountant to perform the audit of our financial statements for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004. The table below sets
forth the aggregate audit fees, audit-related fees, tax fees and all other fees
billed for services rendered by our principal accountants in our fiscal years
ended December 31, 2005 and 2004.

FISCAL FISCAL
FEE CATEGORY 2005 2004
Audit Fees (1) $ 76,000 $ 65,700
Audit-Related Fees (2) - -
Tax Fees (3) $ 12,000 $ 19,630
All Other Fees (4) - -
Total All Fees $ 88,000 $ 85,330

(1) Audit Fees. These consist of fees billed for professional services rendered
for the audit of our annual financial statements and review of the interim
financial statements included in quarterly 10-Q reports and for services
normally provided in connection with statutory and regulatory filings.
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(2) Audit-Related Fees. These consist of fees billed for assurance and related
services that are reasonably related to the performance of the audit or
review of our financial statements that are not reported under "Audit
Fees." These services include accounting consultations in connection with
acquisitions and consultations concerning financial accounting and
reporting standards.

(3) Tax Fees. These consist of fees billed for professional services for tax
compliance, tax advice and tax planning.

(4) All Other Fees. These consist of other fees not reported in the above
categories.
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PRE-APPROVAL POLICIES AND PROCEDURES OF AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has responsibility for the appointment, compensation and
oversight of the work of the independent accountant. As part of this
responsibility, the Audit Committee must pre-approve all permissible services to
be performed by the independent accountant.

The Audit Committee has adopted an auditor pre-approval policy which sets forth
the procedures and conditions pursuant to which pre-approval may be given for
services performed by the independent auditor. Under the policy, the Committee
must give prior approval for all auditing services and the terms thereof (which
may include providing comfort letters in connection with securities
underwritings) and non-audit services (other than non-audit services prohibited
under Section 10A(g) of the Exchange Act or the applicable rules of the SEC or
the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board) to be provided. Prior approval
need not be given with respect to the provision of non-audit services if certain
"de minimus" provisions of Section 10A(i) (1) (B) of the Exchange Act are
satisfied. The Audit Committee may delegate to one or more of its members
authority to approve a request for pre-approval provided the member reports any
approval so given to the Audit Committee at its next scheduled meeting.

PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a) (1) INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following documents are included as part of this Annual Report on Form
10-K.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm........ ..ttt eeennnnn
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 . ... ittt ittt ittt teeeeeeneeeeeenenan
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003.......
Consolidated Statements of Convertible Preferred Stock, Stockholders' Equity (Deficit) and
Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003...............
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003.......
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. ... ..ttt i iiii ettt eneeeeeeeeeneeeeeeeeaeeeeeneens

(a) (2) Financial Statement Schedules
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Schedule II--Valuation and QUalifying ACCOUNE S . .. i it ittt ittt ittt ettt ee e e eeeeeeeeeeeeannenn

(a) (3) Exhibits

Please see subsection (b) below.
(b) EXHIBITS

The following exhibits are incorporated herein by reference or are filed
with this report as indicated below. Exhibits indicated with (+) constitute all
of the management contracts and compensation plans and arrangements required to
be filed as exhibits to the Report on Form 10-K.
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EXHIBIT NO. TITLE
3.1 Form of Fifth Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company (1)
3.2 Composite Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company as amended by Amendment to

Bylaws adopted May 16, 2001 (4)

Form of Specimen Certificate for the Company's Common Stock (4)

4.2 Shareholder Rights Agreement, dated as of May 17, 2001, between the Company and
EquiServe Trust Company, N.A., as Rights Agent, including form of Right Certifica

isy
[

10.1 Form of Indemnity Agreement entered into by the Company with each of its director

10.2 Amended and Restated 1997 Stock Option Plan(l)+

10.3 October 2001 Amendment to Amended and Restated 1997 Stock Option Plan (4)+

10.4 1999 Stock Option Plan(l)+

10.5 2000 Stock Option and Incentive Plan(l)+

10.6 Composite Transaction Bonus Plan adopted August 28, 2001 as amended on March 12,
2002 (4)+

10.7 Employee Stock Purchase Plan(l)+

10.8 Letter agreement dated June 26, 2001 between the Company and Nanda Krish(3)+

10.9 Amended and Restated Agreement Concerning Termination of Employment, Severance Pa
and Related Matters dated as of October 11, 2001 between the Company and Mathew
Ackley (4) +

10.10 Second Amended and Restated Agreement Concerning Termination of Employment, Sever
Pay and Related Matters dated as of October 11, 2001 between the Company and Jane
Smith (4) +

10.11 Lease Agreement dated November 9, 1999, between DIV Unicorn, LLC and the Company (

10.12 Siteharbor Services Agreement between the Company and NaviSite, Inc. dated as of
November 1, 2001 together with Amendment to Siteharbor Services Agreement dated a
November 1, 2001 (4)

10.13 Indemnification Agreement among the Company and Sierra Ventures VII, LP, and Sier
Ventures Associates VII, LLC, dated February 25, 1999 (1)

10.14 Warrant to Purchase Common Stock between the Company and Lycos, Inc. dated as of
12, 1999(1)

10.15 Auction Services Agreement, dated September 15, 1999, by and between the Company
Ticketmaster Online-CitySearch (1)

10.16 Agreement Concerning termination of Employment, Severance Pay
and related Matters dated as of January 17, 2002 between the
Company and Nanda Krish (5)+

10.17 Second Amendment to Agreement dated as of March 15, 2002 between the Company and
NaviSite, Inc. (5)

10.18 Promotions Agreement dated as of April 10, 2002 between the Company and eBay, Inc

10.19 Third Amendment to Agreement dated as of December 1, 2002 between the Company and
Navisite, Inc. (8)

10.20 Agreement Concerning Employment and Termination dated as of January 20, 2003 betw
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the Company and David George (8)+

10.21 Services Agreement dated as of November 17, 2004 between the Company and Baringtc

Capital Group, L.P.(9)

10.22 Amendment to Administrative Services Agreement dated as of March 23,

Company and Barington Capital Group, L.P.*

2006 between

23.1 Consent of Rothstein, Kass & Company, P.C.*

31.1 Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.*

31.2 Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.*

32.1 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.*

32.2 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.*

* Filed with this Report.

(1) Included as an exhibit to, and incorporated in this Report by reference to,

the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 333-92677), as amended,
filed with the SEC.

(2) Included as an exhibit to, and incorporated in this Report by reference to,
the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 17, 2001 filed with the SEC
on May 22, 2001.

(3) Included as an exhibit to, and incorporated in this Report by reference to,
the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2001
filed with the SEC on November 9, 2001.
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(4) Included as an exhibit to, and incorporated in this Report by reference to,
the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001
filed with the SEC on March 31, 2002.

(5) 1Included as an exhibit to, and incorporated in this Report by reference to,
the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2002
filed with the SEC on May 14, 2002.

(6) Included as an exhibit to, and incorporated in this Report by reference to,
the Company's Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 20, 2002.

(7) Included as an exhibit to, and incorporated in this Report by reference to,
the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2002
filed with the SEC on August 14, 2002.

(8) 1Included as an exhibit to, and incorporated in this Report by reference to,
the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002
filed with the SEC on March 28, 2003.

(9) 1Included as an exhibit to, and incorporated in this Report by reference to,
the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004
filed with the SEC on March 30, 2005.

Exhibits

(c) Financial Statement Schedules

Please see page II-1 of this Annual Report on form 10-K.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, on March 30, 2006.

DYNABAZAAR, INC.

By: /s/ William J. Fox

William J. Fox
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated.

SIGNATURE TITLE DATE

/s/ William J. Fox President, Chief Executive Officer and Director March 30, 2006
—————————————————— (Principal Executive Officer)
William J. Fox

/s/ Melvyn Brunt Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer (Principal March 30, 2006
———————————————— Financial and Accounting Officer)
Melvyn Brunt

/s/ Rory J. Cowan Director and Chairman of the Board March 30, 2006

Rory J. Cowan

/s/ James A. Mitarotonda Director March 30, 2006
James A. Mitarotonda

/s/ Raymond Steele Director March 30, 2006

Raymond Steele
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Consolidated Statements of Convertible Preferred Stock, Stockholders' Equity (Deficit)
Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. ... ..ttt ittt ettt eeeeeeeeeeeneeeeeeeeaeeeeeneens

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Dynabazaar, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Dynabazaar, Inc.
& Subsidiaries (the "Company") as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related
consolidated statements of operations, convertible preferred stock,
stockholders' equity (deficit) and comprehensive income (loss), and cash flows
for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2005. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company
is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its
internal control over financial reporting. Our audit includes consideration of
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control
over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statements presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of
December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the results of its operations and its cash flows
for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2005, in conformity
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements referred
to above, we audited the financial schedules listed under Item 15. In our
opinion, these financial schedules, when considered in relation to the
consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, present fairly, in all
material respects, the information stated therein.

/s/ Rothstein, Kass & Company, P.C.

Roseland, New Jersey
March 9, 2006

DYNABAZAAR, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)
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Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Prepaid expenses
Other current assets

Total current assets
Long-term prepaid expenses

Total assets

Edgar Filing: DYNABAZAAR INC - Form 10-K

ASSETS

(see Note 4)

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Current liabilities:

Accrued expenses
Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

(see Note 4)

Commitments and contingent liabilities

Stockholders'
Common stock,

29,526,385 and 29,426,385 shares issued at December 31,
respectively
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive income,
Accumulated deficit

and 2004,

Less:

2,458,441 shares at December 31,
Total stockholders'

Total liabilities and stockholders'

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated

Common stock held in treasury,

equity

90,000,000 shares authorized,
2005

$0.001 par value;

at cost; 6,116,241 and
2005 and 2004, respectively

equity

equity

financial statements.
F-3
DYNABAZAAR, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

DECEMBER 31,

2005 2004
$ 9,125 $ 8,989
341 331
2,000
9,466 11,320
996 1,328

$ 206 S 196
2,000

206 2,196

30 30

151, 667 151,636
260 313
(137,231) (138,487)
14,726 13,492
(4,470) (3,040)
10,256 10, 452

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DE
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REVEIMUE 4t ittt ittt ettt e et e et e e et e e et e e et e et e e et $ - S -
Operating expenses:
Cost of revenue, exclusive of $0, $0 and, $11, in 2005, 2004, and
2003, respectively, reported below as equity-related charges ......
Sales and marketing, exclusive of $0, $0 and, $41, in 2005, 2004,
and 2003, respectively, reported below as equity-related charges
Development and engineering, exclusive of $0, $0 and, $32,
in 2005, 2004 and 2003 respectively, reported below as
equity-—related Charges . ...ttt ittt ettt et eeeeeee e
General and administrative, exclusive of $0, $0 and, $23,
in 2005, 2004 and 2003 respectively, reported below as
equity-—related Charges .. ...ttt ittt ettt ettt eeeeeee e 1,119 2,227
Unutilized office space charge .. ... ..ttt ittt ettt eeneeneenns
Equity-related Charges ... ..ttt ittt ettt tee et eeeeeaeenn
Total Operating EXPENSES & i ittt vttt ettt ettt aeeeeeeeeeaeeeeeeeennneens 1,119 2,227
LoSS from Operations ..ttt it ittt et e e e e e e e e e (1,119 (2,227)
Other income
Interest income (See NOLEe 4) ittt ittt ittt ettt te e et 375 265
Gain on sale of assets (See NOote 4) ittt ittt ittt ettt et teenenn 2,000
2,375 265
Net InCOME (108 S) vttt ittt ittt ettt et ettt ettt ettt te e 1,256 (1,962)
Dividends and accretion on redeemable convertible preferred stock
Net income (loss) attributable to common shareholders ................ $ 1,256 S (1,962)
Net income (loss) per common share
2= 1 3 11 $ 0.05 S (0.07)
3 oY $ 0.05 $ (0.07)
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding
2= T 25,165 27,024
0 oY 25,259 27,024
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated
financial statements.
F-4
DYNABAZAAR, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK,
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT) AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005, 2004 AND 2003
(IN THOUSANDS)
SHARE AMOUNT AMOUNT
———————————————— SHARE AT PAR ADDITIONAL
CONVERTIBLE @ ———————  ———————— PATD-IN —=
PREFERRED STOCK COMMON STOCK CAPITAL
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Balance at January 1, 2003
Comprehensive loss:

Net loss

Foreign currency translation
adjustment, net of tax

Unrealized gain on marketable
securities, net of tax
Comprehensive loss

Series B convertible preferred
stock accretion

Series B convertible preferred
stock dividend

Issuance of common stock upon
exercise of employee stock options
Issuance of common stock under
employee stock purchase plan
Cancellation of employee stock
options

Deferred compensation related to
employee stock options

Reversal of Series B preferred
expenses

Series B liquidation preference
Series B redemption and retirement
Dividend payment
Balance at December 31, 2003
Comprehensive loss:

Net loss

Foreign currency translation
adjustment, net of tax

Comprehensive loss
Treasury stock purchase (at cost)

Balance at December 31, 2004
Comprehensive loss

Net income

Foreign currency transaction
adjustments, net of tax

Comprehensive income

Issuance of common stock upon
exercise of employee stock options
Treasury stock purchase (at cost)

Balance at December 31, 2005

Balance at January 1, 2003

952 $ 1,967 29,421 $ 30 $ 188,747
33 (33)
(90)
(352)
6 6
(52)
(42)
(2,000)
(952) (2,000) 533
(35,165)
29,427 30 151,636
29,427 30 151,636
99 31
- S - 29,526 $ 30 $ 151,667
DEFERRED ACCUMULATED
COMPENSATION OTHER
AND COMPREHENSIVE
EQUITY-RELATED INCOME ACCUMULATED COMPREHENST
CHARGES (LOSS) DEFICIT INCOME (LOS
$ (159) S 12 S (131,926)
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Comprehensive loss:

Net loss (4,599) (4,5
Foreign currency translation

adjustment, net of tax 122 1
Unrealized gain on marketable

securities, net of tax 57

Comprehensive loss (4,4

Series B convertible preferred
stock accretion

Series B convertible preferred
stock dividend

Issuance of common stock upon
exercise of employee stock options
Issuance of common stock under
employee stock purchase plan

Cancellation of employee stock

options 52
Deferred compensation related to

employee stock options 107
Reversal of Series B preferred

expenses

Series B liquidation preference
Series B redemption and retirement
Dividend payment

Balance at December 31, 2003 191 (136,525)

Comprehensive loss:

Net loss (1,962) (1,9
Foreign currency translation

adjustment, net of tax 122 1
Comprehensive loss (1,8

Treasury stock purchase (at cost)

Balance at December 31, 2004 313 (138,487)

Comprehensive loss

Net income 1,256 1,2
Foreign currency transaction

adjustments, net of tax (53) (
Comprehensive income 1,2

Issuance of common stock upon
exercise of employee stock options
Treasury stock purchase (at cost)

Balance at December 31, 2005 S - S 260 S (137,231)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated
financial statements.

F-5

DYNABAZAAR, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)
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FOR THE YEARS ENDED DE

Cash flows from operating activities:
NEet INCOME (LOSS) vttt ittt et ettt ettt et ettt ettt e eeeeseeeneenns S 1,256 S (1,962)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash used in

operating activities:

Gain on sale Of ASSEL S v i i ittt ittt et e e et et et e e e e e e e e e e e (2,000)
[yt Y B = w1 o 109
Provision for bad debt . ... ..t e e e e 144

Amortization of deferred compensation and equity-related charges
Loss on disposal of property and equipment ............iiiiiiiiiee...
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable ...t e e e e e e e et e e 207
Prepaid expenses and other current assets ........c.cciiiiiiennnnn. (10) 58
Long-term prepaild EXPeNSES v ittt i ettt eeee ettt 332 330
(O ol o TS = i 903
AcCcCoUNt S Payable ..t e e e e e e e e e e e e et e (82)
ACCIUECA EXPEIISES t et v e vt o oae e oo e e ooneeeeeseeaeeeeeeseenseeeeeeeenns 10 (838)
Deferred FeVEeNUE ..ttt ittt ittt e e ettt teeeeeeeeeaeeeeeeeeeneeens

Accrual for unutilized office space . ...ttt (1,200)

Other non-current liabilities ... ...ttt ettt eeneenns

Net cash used in operating activities ...... ..t eennn. (412) (2,331)
Cash flows from investing activities:

Proceeds from sale of assets, net of selling costs ................. 2,000

Additions to property and equipment .. ..... ...ttt e e e

Purchase of marketable securities .......i ittt enneneennn

Proceeds from maturity of marketable securities .................... 5,000
Decrease in restricted cash ... ...ttt ittt et 523
Net cash provided by investing activities .........iiiiii i ennnn. 2,000 5,523

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net of issuance costs ...... 31
Payment of liquidation preference of Series B convertible
preferred StOCK ..ttt it e e e e e e e e e e et e
Payment of redemption of convertible preferred stock ...............
Purchase of treasury StoCK ...ttt ittt it ettt e eeeeaeenen (1,430) (22)
Dividends paid on preferred stock ....... ... i
Dividends paid on common STOCK ...ttt ittt

Net cash used in financing activities ...... ..ttt ennnn. (1,399) (22)
Effect of foreign exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents ........ _______;;;) _______1;;
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ................. _______1;; _____;:;;;
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year ..........iiiiiiienneeo.. 8,989 5,697
Cash and cash equivalents, end Of yVear ... ..ttt ittt tennenennnn ;____;:1;; ;____é:;é;

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated
financial statements.

F-6
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DYNABAZAAR, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. THE COMPANY

Through September 3, 2003, Dynabazaar, Inc. ("we," "us, " "Dynabazaar" or the
"Company") was an online auction and promotions technology service provider that
enabled marketers to create results-oriented rewards programs and helped
commerce companies automate the process of selling their excess inventory online
to wholesale and retail buyers. On September 4, 2003, we sold substantially all

of our operating assets to eBay, Inc. ("eBay") for consideration of $4.5 million
in cash under the terms and conditions of an asset purchase agreement we entered
into with eBay on June 20, 2003 (the "Asset Purchase Agreement"). Following the

closing of the asset sale, we changed our name from "Fairmarket, Inc." to
"Dynabazaar, Inc."

We are currently reviewing alternatives for the use of our remaining assets,
which may include other business opportunities unrelated to our historical
business, including the possible acquisition of other businesses. At this time,
our board of directors has not made any decision to pursue any one of these
options and has not identified any such opportunities. We cannot assure you that
we will be able to identify or successfully capitalize on any appropriate
business opportunities.

In connection with the Company's cessation of its online auction business, the
Company relocated its principal executive offices as of January 1, 2004 to 888
Seventh Avenue, 17th Floor, New York, 10019, an office maintained by Barington
Capital Group, LP ("Barington"), a limited partnership whose general partner is
a corporation of which James Mitarotonda is Chairman, President and Chief
Executive Officer. Mr. Mitarotonda is a director of the Company and our former
President and Chief Executive Officer. William Fox, the President, Chief
Executive Officer and a director of the Company, is the Vice Chairman of
Barington. Pursuant to an administrative services agreement we entered into with
Barington in December 2003 (which ran through December 31, 2004), we paid
Barington a monthly fee of $8,000 for performing certain administrative services
on behalf of the Company. In connection with the agreement, we also granted to
James Mitarotonda an option to purchase 320,000 shares of our common stock. The
option is fully exercisable and was granted with an exercise price per share
equal to $0.33, the fair market value of our common stock on the grant date. The
Company entered into an amended administrative services agreement with Barington
dated as of December 17, 2004. Under the amended agreement, which runs through
December 31, 2006, Barington is to be paid a fee of $15,000 per month for
performing certain administrative, accounting and other services on behalf of
the Company. However, as of March 1, 2006 the Company and Barington agreed to
reduce the monthly fee to $7,500. In addition, Barington is to be paid a fee of
$175 an hour for any legal services provided by Barington on behalf of the
Company at the Company's request. The Company has also agreed that in the event
that Barington identifies for the Company, at its request, a business
transaction such as a merger, acquisition or joint venture, and/or provides the
Company with financial consulting or merger and acquisition services in
connection with such business transaction, the Company will pay Barington a fee
to be agreed upon between Barington and the Board of Directors of the Company.
In connection with the amended agreement, the Company granted options to certain
designees of Barington to purchase, in the aggregate, 320,000 shares of the
Company's common stock at an exercise price of $0.31 per share, the fair market
value of the Company's common stock on the grant date.

In January 2004, James Mitarotonda was appointed as our President and Chief

Executive Officer and Mel Brunt was appointed as our Chief Financial Officer. In
December 2004, Mr. Mitarotonda resigned as the Company's President and Chief
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Executive Officer and remained a director of the Company. In December 2004, Mr.
William Fox became the Company's President and Chief Executive Officer.

On January 20, 2004, the Company executed a settlement agreement with Acquaport
Unicorn, Inc., the landlord of the Company's Woburn, Massachusetts headquarters,
providing for termination of the Company's lease in consideration of a cash
payment of $1.2 million. In March 2004, the cash payment was made and on April
9, 2004 our last employee was terminated and the premises vacated.

On February 2, 2004, we dismissed PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as our independent
accountants and engaged Rothstein, Kass & Company, P.C. as our independent
auditors commencing with the audit of our financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2003.

DYNABAZAAR, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

On June 15, 2004, we received a letter from the Nasdaqg Stock Market notifying us
that, because the closing price of our common stock has closed below $1.00 per
share for 30 consecutive trading days and we do not presently conduct an
operating business, the Company's common stock would be delisted on June 24,
2004. Our stock now trades over the counter on the Nasdag OTC bulletin board.

On June 22, 2004, the Board of Directors of the Company authorized the
termination of the Company's Shareholder Rights Agreement based on its
assessment that the termination of the Rights Agreement would benefit the
Company's stockholders and enhance the corporate governance practice of the
Company. The Company entered into an Amendment No. 1 to the Shareholder Rights
Agreement, dated as of July 7, 2004, by and between the Company and EquiServe
Trust Company, N.A., as Rights Agent, which provided for the termination of the
Company's Shareholder Rights Agreement on July 31, 2004.

On August 20, 2004, the Company announced that the Board of Directors had
authorized the repurchase of up to 5 million shares of the Corporation's common
stock. To date, we have purchased 81,800 shares at an average price per share of
$ 0.2689.

On September 28, 2004, the Company executed a settlement with Regal House
Limited, the landlord of the Company's London, UK headquarters, providing for
termination of the Company's lease in consideration of a cash payment of
approximately $463,000. The cash payment was drawn from the security deposit of
approximately $569,000 held by the landlord. The remaining balance of $106,000
was returned to us.

As of September 30, 2004, we held an available-for-sale security in the form of
a United States Government Bond. On October 6, 2004, this position was
liquidated and re-invested in cash.

On December 17, 2004, the Board of Directors appointed Raymond L. Steele to
serve as a Class I director. On December 27, 2004, Joseph R. Wright, Jr.
resigned from the Board of Directors in order to devote additional time to his
position as President, Chief Executive Officer and a director of PanAmSat
Corporation, a global provider of satellite-based video, broadcasting and
network distribution and delivery services. On January 31, 2005, the Board of
Directors appointed Karen Schneider to serve as a Class II director. On March
23, 2006, Karen Schneider resigned from the Board of Directors in order to
devote additional time to her position as a senior executive of Pringles of
Scotland in the UK.
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On June 30, 2005, the Company entered into a stock purchase agreement (the
"Stock Purchase Agreement") with Lloyd Miller, III, a former director of the
Company, on behalf of himself and certain affiliated entities, whereby the
Company purchased from Mr. Miller and such affiliated entities an aggregate of
3,657,988 shares of common stock, par value $0.001 per share, of the Company at
an aggregate purchase price of approximately $1.2 million. Pursuant to the Stock
Purchase Agreement, Mr. Miller is also entitled to receive 13.6% of the net
proceeds distributed to the Company pursuant to the escrow agreement dated as of
September 4, 2003 by and among the Company, eBay and Zions First National Bank,
as additional consideration for his shares of common stock (the "Escrow
Agreement") .

On September 6, 2005, the Company received a payment of $2,045,982 from Zions
First National Bank pursuant to the Escrow Agreement. The payment represented
the $2 million held in escrow under the terms and conditions of the Asset
Purchase Agreement we entered into with eBay together with $45,982 of accrued
interest. In accordance with the Stock Purchase Agreement entered into with
former director Lloyd Miller, III and certain affiliated entities, the Company
paid to Mr. Miller and certain affiliated entities a total of approximately
$278,000 from the proceeds of Escrow Agreement, which was recorded as additional
consideration for the stock purchase.

The Company has not yet settled on an operating plan, although the Company feels
its existing cash and cash equivalents are sufficient to fund the Company's
current operations and satisfy its obligations. The Company believes these
obligations will primarily relate to costs associated with the operation as a
public company (legal, accounting, insurance, etc.), as well as the satisfaction
of any potential legal judgments or settlements and the expenses associated with
any new business activities which may be undertaken by the Company. The Company
continues to consider future alternatives, including the possible acquisition of
other businesses, merger with another Company sale of its remaining assets or a
partial or complete liquidation. However, the Company has not consummated any
significant transactions to date and the Company's business prospects remain
uncertain. To the

DYNABAZAAR, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

extent that management of the Company moves forward on any alternative strategy,
such strategy may have an impact on the Company's liquidity.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of
Dynabazaar and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. All material intercompany
transactions have been eliminated. Certain reclassifications of prior year
amounts have been made to conform with current year presentation.

USE OF ESTIMATES IN THE PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the dates of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting periods.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The Company considers all highly liquid investment instruments purchased with an
original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Cash
equivalents consist of cash placed in an overnight investment account,
commercial paper and money market accounts. The Company maintains cash balances
in certain financial institutions that may exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation coverage of $100,000. At December 31, 2005, and at various times
during the year, balances of cash at financial institutions exceeded the
federally insured limit. The Company has not experienced any losses in such
accounts and believes it is not subject to any significant credit risk on cash
and cash equivalents.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Company has no significant concentration of credit risk such as foreign
exchange contracts, option contracts or other foreign hedging arrangements.
Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of
credit risk primarily consist of cash and cash equivalents, marketable
securities and trade accounts receivable. The Company places its cash, cash
equivalents and marketable securities with what the Company believes are high
credit quality financial institutions.

CUSTOMERS

Our customers included traditional retailers, distributors and manufacturers as
well as Internet portals and other web communities primarily engaged in
e-commerce. In 2003, we had two major customers that each accounted for more
than 10% of our revenue. eBay, Inc. accounted for 38% and Microsoft Corporation
accounted for 11% of total revenue.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Prior to the eBay sale, the Company derived revenues from application fees,
transaction fees and professional services fees. In accordance with SEC Staff
Accounting Bulletin No. 101, the Company did not record revenue until all of the
following criteria are met: persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists;
services have been rendered; the Company's price to its customer is fixed and
determinable; and collectibility is reasonably assured.

Application fees consisted of implementation fees and fixed monthly hosting,
support and operating fees. An implementation fee was generally charged for the
initial design, development and implementation of a customer's dynamic pricing
or points based site or the Company's MarketSelect service, in accordance with
the terms of the contract. The implementation fee was generally payable upon
execution of the contract, recorded as deferred

F-9
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revenue and recognized as revenue, ratably, over the contract period. A fixed
monthly hosting fee covered hosting services, direct customer support services,
end-user customer support services, services for online billing and collection
of fees for community sites, and other monthly operating services provided by
the Company. Fixed monthly service fees were recognized as revenue in the month
that the service is provided.

Merchant customers generally paid transaction fees at varying percentages of the
gross proceeds from the sale of their listed products and services, whether sold
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on their sites or on other Dynabazaar Network sites or, in the case of the
Company's MarketSelect service, on the eBay site. For community customers,
transaction fees consisted of the Company's share of listing fees charged by
community customers for the listing of products and services, enhanced listing
fees charged by community customers for the prominent display of a particular
seller listing and success fees charged to sellers upon a completed sale of a
listing. Community customers paid transaction fees calculated in one of two
ways. Generally, under contracts entered into before 2000, these fees were
calculated based on a percentage of the gross proceeds from the sale of the
items that were listed through the community site and sold either on the
community site or on other Dynabazaar Network sites. These communities received
a percentage of the gross proceeds from the sale of items that were listed
directly on other sites in the Dynabazaar Network and sold through the community
site.

Professional services fees primarily consisted of fees for consulting services
provided by the Company related to the Company's outsourced, private-label,
dynamic pricing solutions, including business applications, technical
customization, integration, e-marketing, usability and other consulting
services. Certain professional services fees, including technical customization
and integration related to ongoing service relationships, were billed over the
term of the service, recorded as deferred revenue and recognized as revenue,
ratably, over the remaining term of the service contract. Fees for consulting
services, which represent a separate earnings process and are unrelated to
ongoing services, including business applications, e-marketing, usability and
other consulting services, were generally billed and recognized as revenue in
the period the service was provided.

We followed the guidance of Emerging Issues Task Force issue No. 01-09,
Accounting for Consideration Given by a Vendor to a Customer or a Reseller of
the Vendor's Products ("EITF 01-09"), in determining whether consideration,
including equity instruments, given to a customer should be recorded as an
operating expense or a reduction of revenue recognized from that same customer.
Consideration given to a customer is recorded as a reduction of revenue unless
both of the following conditions are met:

o We receive an identifiable benefit in exchange for the consideration,
and the identified benefit is sufficiently separable from the
customer's purchase of our products and services such that we could
have purchased the products from a third party, and

o We can reasonably estimate the fair value of the benefit received.

If both of the conditions are met, we record consideration paid to customers as
an expense. Consideration, including equity instruments, not meeting the above
criteria, is recorded as a reduction of revenue; to the extent we have recorded
cumulative revenue from the customer or reseller. Any consideration in excess of
cumulative revenue recognized from the customer or reseller is recorded as an
operating expense.

INCOME TAXES

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized based on the expected future
tax consequences, using current tax rates, of temporary differences between the
financial statement carrying amounts and the income tax basis of assets and
liabilities. A valuation allowance is applied against any net deferred tax asset
if, based on the weighted available evidence, it is more likely than not that
some or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized.

ACCOUNTING FOR STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 123, "Accounting for
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Stock-Based Compensation," encourages but does not require companies to record
compensation costs for stock-based employee compensation at

F-10
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fair value. The Company has chosen to account for stock-based compensation
granted to employees using the intrinsic value method prescribed in Accounting
Principles Board ("APB") Opinion No. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees," and related interpretations. Accordingly, compensation costs for
stock options granted to employees is measured as the excess, if any, of the
fair value of the Company's stock at the date of the grant over the amount that
must be paid by the employee to acquire the stock under the terms of the stock
option. Subsequent changes to option terms can also give rise to compensation.
Stock-based compensation issued to non-employees is measured and recorded using
the fair value method prescribed in SFAS No. 123.

The Company follows the disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 123 and has applied
APB Opinion No. 25 and related interpretations in accounting for its stock

option plans. Had compensation cost for the Company's stock-based compensation
plans been determined based on the fair value at the grant dates as calculated
in accordance with SFAS No. 123, the Company's net income (loss) for the years
ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 would have increased (decreased) to the
pro forma amounts indicated below (in thousands, except per share amounts) :

2005 2004
Net income (loss)
N T o Y Bt i =Y S 1,256 S (1,962)
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense included in
repPOrted FeSULL S ittt ittt e ittt e e et ettt e et e
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined
under the fair-value-based method for all awards ........cceeeee... (10) (334)
o I e 3 117> S 1,246 S (2,189)
Basic and diluted net income (loss) per share - as reported ........ S 0.05 S (0.07)
Basic and diluted net income (loss) per share - pro forma .......... S 0.05 S (0.08)
The fair value of each stock option is estimated on the date of grant using the
Black-Scholes valuation model with the following assumptions:
2005 2004 2003
Expected dividend yield .......c.oiiiiiiiiinnnnn.. 0% 0% 0%
Expected stock price volatility ................ 55% 55% 60%
Risk-free interest rate ........iiiiiiiii.. 4.3% 4.2% 4.0%
Expected option term ........cuuiiiieetennnnnnns 10 years 10 years 5 years
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COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

Comprehensive income (loss) consists of net income (loss) and other
comprehensive income (loss), which includes foreign currency translation
adjustments and unrealized gains and losses on marketable securities classified
as available for sale.

FOREIGN CURRENCY

The functional currencies of the Company's foreign subsidiaries are the local
currencies. Assets and liabilities of the foreign subsidiaries are translated
into U.S. dollars at the rates of exchange in effect at the end of the year.
Revenue and expense amounts are translated using the average exchange rates for
the period. Net unrealized gains and losses resulting from foreign currency
translation are included in other comprehensive loss which is a separate
component of stockholders' equity. Net realized gains and losses resulting from
foreign currency transactions are included in the consolidated statement of
operations.

DYNABAZAAR, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
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NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued SFAS
No. 123 (R), "Share-Based Payment." SFAS No. 123 (R) supersedes APB No. 25 and its
related implementation guidance. SFAS No. 123 (R) establishes standards for the
accounting for transactions in which an entity exchanges its equity instruments
for goods or services. It also addresses transactions in which an entity incurs
liabilities in exchange for goods or services that are based on the fair value
of the entity's instruments or that may be settled by the issuance of those
equity instruments. SFAS No. 123 (R) focuses primarily on accounting for
transactions in which an entity obtains employee services in share-based payment
transactions. SFAS No. 123 (R) requires a public entity to measure the cost of
employee services received in exchange for an award of equity instruments based
on the grant-date fair value of the award (with limited exceptions). That cost
will be recognized over the period during which an employee is required to
provide service in exchange for the award during the requisite service period
(usually the vesting period). No compensation costs are recognized for equity
instruments for which employees do not render the requisite service. The
grant-date fair value of employee share options and similar instruments will be
estimated using option-pricing models adjusted for the unique characteristics of
those instruments (unless observable market prices for the same or similar
instruments are available). If an equity award is modified after the grant date,
incremental compensation cost will be recognized in an amount equal to the
excess of the fair value of the modified award over the fair value of the
original immediately before the modification. The Company has not completed its
evaluation of SFAS No. 123 (R) but expects the adoption of this new standard will
not have an impact on operating results due to the Company's use of options as
employee incentives. This statement became effective January 1, 2006.

In May 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154, "Accounting Changes and Error
Corrections," which replaces APB Opinion No. 20, "Accounting Changes," and SFAS
No. 3, "Reporting Accounting Changes in Interim Financial Statements," and
changes the requirements for the accounting for and reporting of a change in
accounting principle. This Statement applies to all voluntary changes in
accounting principle and to changes required by an accounting pronouncement in
the unusual instance that the pronouncement does not include specific transition
provisions. When a pronouncement includes specific transition provisions, those
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provisions should be followed.

APB Opinion No. 20 previously required that most voluntary changes in accounting
principle be recognized by including in net income of the period of the change
the cumulative effect of changing to the new accounting principle. This
Statement requires retrospective application to prior periods' financial
statements of changes in accounting principle. When it is impracticable to
determine the cumulative effect of applying a change in accounting principle to
all prior periods, this Statement requires that the new accounting principle be
applied as if it were adopted prospectively from the earliest date practicable.
This Statement defines retrospective application as the application of a
different accounting principle to prior accounting periods as if that principle
had always been used or as the adjustment of previously issued financial
statements to reflect a change in the reporting entity. This Statement also
redefines restatement as the revising of previously issued financial statements
to reflect the correction of an error. Finally, this Statement requires that a
change in depreciation, amortization, or depletion method for long-lived,
nonfinancial assets be accounted for as a change in accounting estimate affected
by a change in accounting principle.

3. NET INCOME (LOSS) PER COMMON SHARE

Basic net income (loss) per common share is computed using the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted net income (loss)
per common share is computed using the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during the period plus the effect of any dilutive potential common
shares. Dilutive potential common equivalent shares consist of the assumed
exercise of stock options, the proceeds of which are then assumed to have been
used to repurchase outstanding stock using the treasury stock method, and the
assumed conversion of convertible preferred stock and warrants. At December 31,
2005, the additional shares amounted to 93,980. At December 31, 2004 and 2003
the additional shares of common stock outstanding have been excluded from the
calculation of diluted net loss per common share because the effect would be
anti-dilutive.

DYNABAZAAR, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
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4. RESTRICTED CASH

Pursuant to an Asset Purchase Agreement with Ebay, the Company placed $2 million
of the consideration received from the sale of substantially all of the
Company's operating assets in escrow in order to secure the Company's
indemnification for certain representations and warranties. The indemnification
was capped at $2 million and for a period of two years following the closing of
the asset sale.

On September 6, 2005, the Company received a payment of $2,045,982 from Zions
First National Bank pursuant to the Escrow Agreement. The payment represented
the $2 million held in escrow under the terms and conditions of the Asset
Purchase Agreement we entered into with eBay together with $45,982 of accrued
interest.

5. ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accrued expenses consist of the following (in thousands) :

DECEMBER 31,
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2005 2004
Professional fees .......iiiiiiiiiiiiinnnn $ 170 S 170
Other .. it e e e e e e e e e e 36 26
Total accrued EXPENSES v eeeeeeeeennnnns $ 206 S 196

6. GAIN ON SALE OF ASSETS

On June 20, 2003, the Company entered into an Asset Purchase Agreement with eBay
to sell substantially all of the Company's technology and business assets to
eBay. Under the Asset Purchase Agreement, the Company sold to eBay substantially
all the Company's business assets for $4.5 million in cash.

The Asset Purchase Agreement also provided that $2 million of the consideration
be held in escrow in order to secure the Company's indemnification for certain
representations and warranties. The indemnification is capped at $2 million and
is for a period of two years following the closing of the asset sale. The
Company estimated its potential liability under the indemnification to be $2
million in accordance with FASB Interpretation No. 45 "Guarantor's Accounting
and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of
Indebtedness of Others" ("FIN 45") and recorded such liability as a reduction in
the gain on the sale of assets.

The Company recorded a gain on the sale of assets of approximately $1.2 million
based on the proceeds less direct costs of $1,317,000 and the indemnification
liability noted above, which is recorded in the results of operations for the
year ended December 31, 2003.

On September 6, 2005 the Company received a payment of $2 million plus interest
from Zions First National Bank. This payment represented the $2 million held in
escrow under the terms and conditions of the Asset Purchase Agreement entered
into with eBay. The Company has now satisfied all requirements of the Asset
Purchase Agreement.

7. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

At December 31, 2005 and 2004, the authorized capital stock of the Company
consisted of (i) 90,000,000 shares of voting common stock with a par value of
$0.001 per share and (ii) 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock with a par value
of $0.001 per share. The Company's Board of Directors has the authority to
determine the voting powers, designations, preferences, privileges and
restrictions of the preferred shares.

On October 10, 2003, the Company declared a cash dividend of $1.30 per share on
the Company's common stock, representing an aggregate cash distribution of
approximately $35 million. The dividend was paid on November 3, 2003 to
stockholders of record on October 20, 2003.
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8. SERIES B PREFERRED STOCK
On May 17, 2002, the Company completed a private placement of 952,380 shares of
its Series B redeemable convertible preferred stock, par value $0.001 per share,

to eBay for an aggregate purchase price of $2.0 million. The Series B preferred
stock is entitled to cash dividends payable quarterly at the rate of 6.5% per
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annum in preference to any dividend on any other series of preferred stock or
common stock. The dividends are cumulative and are entitled to participate on a
pro rata basis in any dividend paid on the common stock on an as if converted
basis. The Series B preferred stock is convertible into shares of common stock
on a one-for-one basis, subject to certain adjustment mechanisms including a
weighted average anti-dilution mechanism. In the event of any liquidation,
dissolution or winding up of the Company (a "Ligquidation"), the holders of the
Series B preferred stock are entitled to receive, in preference to the holders
of certain Jjunior securities, as defined, a per share amount equal to $2.10 plus
all accrued and unpaid dividends (the "Liquidation Preference"). In the event of
a Liquidation, after payment of the Liquidation Preference and any other
liquidation preference on any other series of stock, the Series B preferred
stock is entitled to participate on a pro rata basis with the common stock in
the distribution of the remaining assets of the Company on as if converted
basis. The holders of the Series B preferred stock have the right to require the
Company to redeem the Series B preferred stock at any time after the earlier of
(a) May 17, 2003, and (b) the happening of a material adverse effect on the
Company's business, as defined. The Company had the right, at any time after May
17, 2004, to redeem the outstanding Series B preferred stock at $2.10 per share
plus all accrued and unpaid dividends. The net proceeds from this offering,
after issuance costs, totaled $1.8 million. At the issuance date, the Company
estimated the fair value of the Series B preferred stock to be in excess of the
amount paid by eBay by $114,200. As a result, the Company recorded an $114,200
adjustment to increase the carrying value of this investment and decrease
revenue from eBay in accordance with EITF 01-09 (see Note 2.) The Company
accreted the carrying value of the Series B preferred stock up to $2.0 million
through May 2003 in accordance with the redemption feature described above. The
Company recorded $33,000 in accretion in the year ended December 31, 2003. At
December 31, 2003, the carrying value of the Series B preferred stock was $0.

In connection with the closing of the asset sale, eBay, the holder of the
Company's Series B preferred stock (the "Series B Shares"), provided notice to
the Company that it had elected to receive a liquidation preference equal to
approximately $2 million in the aggregate, or $2.10 per share, plus all accrued
and unpaid dividends with respect to the Series B Shares. The liquidation
preference and accrued and unpaid dividends were paid to eBay on September 5,
2003 in the amount of approximately $2 million. On September 29, 2003, the
Company repurchased from eBay all of the Series B Shares for a purchase price of
approximately $1.5 million in cash. The payment represented payment in full for
any and all obligations of the Company in respect of the Series B Shares.

TREASURY STOCK

In 2003 the Company sold 612,000 shares of treasury stock with a par value $.001
and a cost of $1.27 per share, in connection with the with the exercise of
employee stock options.

On August 20, 2004, the Company announced that the Board of Directors had
authorized the repurchase of up to 5 million shares of the Corporation common
stock. To date, we have purchased 81,800 shares at an average price per share of
$0.2689, under this program.

On June 30, 2005, the Company purchased 3,657,988 shares of common stock for an
aggregate purchase price of approximately $1.2 million in connection with the
Stock Purchase Agreement with Lloyd Miller, III. Then on September 6, 2005, the
Company paid approximately $278,000 of additional consideration for the above
shares in accordance with the terms of the Stock Purchase Agreement.

9. STOCK OPTION PLANS

2000 STOCK OPTION AND INCENTIVE PLAN
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In February 2000, the Company's Board of Directors and stockholders approved the
2000 Stock Option and Incentive Plan (the "2000 Plan"), which provides for the
issuance of up to 4,017,250 shares of common stock plus the number of shares as
to which options granted under the 1997 and 1999 Plans are forfeited or
otherwise terminate
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unexercised. This plan provides for awards in the form of ISOs, NSOs, restricted
stock awards and other forms of awards to officers, directors, employees and
consultants of the Company. At December 31, 2005, there were 5,585,662 shares
available for issuance under this plan.

The Board of Directors determines the term of each option, the option price, the
number of shares for which each option is granted and the times at which each
option vests. For holders of 10% or more of the Company's outstanding common
stock, ISOs may not be granted at less than 110% of the fair market value of the
common stock at the date of grant.

2000 EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION AND INCENTIVE PLAN

In October 2000, the Company's Board of Directors approved the 2000 Employee
Stock Option and Incentive Plan (the "2000 Employee Plan"), which originally
provided for the issuance of up to 1,500,000 shares of common stock, under NSOs
to employees and key persons of the Company other than any member of the
Company's Board of Directors or any other individual who 1is subject to the
reporting and other provisions of Section 16 of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934. In January 2001, in connection with the one-time employee option exchange
incentive program described below, the Board of Directors amended this plan to
increase the number of shares of common stock available for issuance under the
plan to 2,654,750. At December 31, 2005, there were 2,450,374 shares available
for issuance under this plan.

The Board of Directors determines the term of each option, the option price, the
number of shares for which each option is granted and the times at which each
option vests.

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at
December 31, 2005:

OPTIONS OUTSTANDING OPTIONS OUTSTANDING
WEIGHTED WEIGHTED
RANCE OF REMAINING AVERAGE AVERAGE
EXERCISE CONTRACTUAL EXERCISE EXERCISE
PRICE PER NUMBER LIFE PRICE PER NUMBER PRICE PER
SHARE OUTSTANDING (IN YEARS) SHARE EXERCISABLE SHARE
$0.31 - $0.34 1,774,000 9.2 $ 0.32 1,774,000 $ 0.32

Stock option activity for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 is as
follows:
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2005 2004
WEIGHTED WEIGHTED
AVERAGE AVERAGE
EXERCISE EXERCISE
NUMBER OF PRICE PER NUMBER OF PRICE PER
SHARES SHARE SHARES SHARE
Outstanding at beginning of period ..... 1,824,000 S 0.32 320,000 S 0.33
Granted ...ttt e e e 50,000 0.30 1,504,000 0.32
ExXercised v v ittt ettt ettt e e e (100,000) 0.31
Canceled ...ttt ittt
Outstanding at end of period ........... 1,774,000 S 0.32 1,824,000 S 0.32
Options exercisable at end of period ... 1,774,000 S 0.32 1,824,000 S 0.32
Weighted average fair value of
options granted during the period at
falr value ...ttt e e S 0.30 S 0.32
The Company 1is recognizing the compensation expense over the vesting period. For
the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, related expense recognized was
$0, $0 and $107,000, respectively.
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10. REVENUES AND LONG-LIVED ASSETS BY GEOGRAPHIC REGION
The table below presents revenues by principal geographic region for the years
ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 (in thousands):
DECEMBER 31,
2005 2004 2003
United SLates tii ittt ittt ittt e ettt et S - S - S 5,120
United Kingdom ... ...ttt imneneeeeennenns 1,479
OLher ittt i e e e 74
Consolidated ....uii ittt ittt eeeee e S - S - S 6,673

11. INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes consists of the following (in thousands) :

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

NU
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2005 2004
FEDERAL STATE FOREIGN TOTAL FEDERAL STATE FOREIGN
Current ............ $ - $ - $ - $ — $ - $ — $ __
Deferred ........... 430 76 506 665 117
Valuation
allowance ......... (430) (76) (5006) (665) (117)
Total ..vviininnnen.. $ - 3 - S - S - S -= s - 8 —
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,
2003
FEDERAL STATE FOREIGN TOTAL
Current ............ $ —— $ -— $ - $ -
Deferred ........... 1,519 260 14 1,793
Valuation
allowance ......... (1,519) (260) (14) (1,793)
Total vvveiininnnnn. $ - $ - $ -= $ -

The Company's effective tax

rate varies from the statutory rate as follows:

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2005 2004
U.S. federal income tax rate .........c.c.oo... 34.0% (34.0)%
SLaAte LAXES it ittt ittt et e e e e e e e 6.0 (6.0)
OLher i i it i i i e e e .1
40.0 (39.9)
Valuation alloWanCe .. v v it it et eeeeeeneeeneas (40.0) 39.9
The Company's federal statutory income tax rate for 2005 and 2004 was 34%. For

2004 the Company recorded no income tax benefit and recorded a full valuation
allowance against net operating losses due to uncertainties related to
realizability of these tax assets. Deferred tax liabilities and assets are
determined based on the difference between financial statement and tax bases
using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which the differences are

expected to reverse. The components of the deferred taxes at December 31, 2005
and 2004 were as follows (in thousands) :
DECEMBER 31,
2005 2004
Net operating loss carryforwards............. $ 4,616 S 5,122
Valuation alloWanCe . v v v e ittt eeeeeeeneeneeens (4,6106) (5,122)
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Net deferred tax assets.....oiiiiiiinnnenn.. $ - S -

In connection with ownership changes, it was determined that certain of the
Company's net operating loss carryfowards ("NOL") have been limited. The Company
recently completed an Internal Revenue Code Section 382
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evaluation that quantified the limitation of the NOL. As of December 31, 2005,
the Company has approximately $13.6 million of NOL's that can be utilized in the
current tax year. These NOL's begin to expire in 2022. A valuation allowance has
been established for the full amount of the deferred tax asset since it is more
likely than not that the deferred tax asset will not be realized.

Ownership changes resulting from the Company's issuance of capital stock may
further limit the amount of net operating loss carryforwards that can be
utilized annually to offset future taxable income. The amount of the annual
limitation is determined based upon the Company's value immediately prior to the
ownership change. Subsequent significant changes in ownership could further
affect the limitation in future years.

12. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL RESULTS (UNAUDITED)

The following table sets forth certain unaudited quarterly results of operations
of the Company for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004. In the opinion of
management, this information has been prepared on the same basis as the audited
consolidated financial statements and all necessary adjustments, consisting only
of normal recurring adjustments, have been included in the amounts stated below
to present fairly the quarterly information when read in conjunction with the
audited consolidated financial statements and related notes included above. The
quarterly operating results are not necessarily indicative of future results of
operations.

FOR THE QUARTER EN

MARCH 31, JUNE 30, SEPTENM
2005 2005 20

(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER

REVENUE & vttt v et e e e eeeeeeeeeeeeeneeaeeeseeeeenenenaneeeeeens $ - $ - $
GroSs Profit ittt it e e e e e e e e e e e

Net 1ncome (L10SS) vt i ittt it it et ettt e et et e e ee e (275) (192)
Basic and diluted net income (loss) per common share ... S (0.01) S (0.01) S

FOR THE QUARTER EN

MARCH 31, JUNE 30, SEPTENM
2004 2004 20

(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER
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REVEINUE 4t ittt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt et e e et $ - $ -
GroSs Profit ittt it e e e e e e e e e e e

1 S S I = T (580) (575)
Basic and diluted net loss per common share ............ $ (0.02) s (0.07)
13. UNUTILIZED OFFICE SPACE CHARGE

On January 20, 2004, the Company and its landlord in Woburn, Massachusetts
agreed to terms in which the Company's obligation under the lease agreement
would be terminated. According to the settlement agreement, the Company was
obligated to pay the landlord a sum of $1.2 million, which was paid in March
2004. The Company vacated the premises by April 10, 2004.

On September 28, 2004, the Company executed a settlement with Regal House
Limited, the landlord of the Company's London, UK headquarters, providing for
termination of the Company's lease in consideration of a cash payment of
approximately $463,000. The cash payment was drawn from the security deposit of
approximately $569,000 held by the landlord. The remaining balance of $106,000
was returned to us.

DYNABAZAAR, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

14. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Company is subject to legal proceedings, claims, and litigation arising in
the ordinary course of business. While the outcome of these matters is currently
not determinable, we do not expect that the ultimate costs to resolve these
matters will have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial
position, results of operations, or cash flows.

We are a defendant in certain purported class action lawsuits filed by
individual shareholders in the U.S. District Court for the Southern District of
New York against Dynabazaar, Scott Randall (former President, Chief Executive

Officer and Chairman of the Board of Dynabazaar), John Belchers (former Chief
Financial Officer of Dynabazaar), U.S. Bancorp Piper Jaffray Inc., DB Alex.
Brown (as successor—-in-interest to Deutsche Bank Securities, Inc.), Robertson
Stephens, Inc. (formerly known as FleetBoston Robertson Stephens, Inc.), Banc of
America Securities, LLC, Goldman Sachs & Co., Inc., Merrill Lynch, Pierce,
Fenner & Smith, Incorporated, Citigroup Global Markets, Inc. (as
successor—-in-interest to Salomon Smith Barney, Inc.), and J.P. Morgan
Securities, Inc. (as successor-in-interest to Hambrecht & Quist, LLC). The

lawsuits have been filed by individual shareholders who purport to seek class
action status on behalf of all other similarly situated persons who purchased
the common stock of Dynabazaar between March 14, 2000 and December 6, 2000. The
lawsuits allege that certain underwriters of Dynabazaar's initial public
offering solicited and received excessive and undisclosed fees and commissions
in connection with that offering. The lawsuits further allege that the
defendants violated the federal securities laws by issuing a registration
statement and prospectus in connection with Dynabazaar's initial public offering
which failed to accurately disclose the amount and nature of the commissions and
fees paid to the underwriter defendants. On or about October 8, 2002, the Court
entered an Order dismissing the claims asserted against certain individual
defendants in the consolidated actions, including the claims against Mr. Randall
and Mr. Belchers, without any payment from these individuals or the Company. On
or about February 19, 2003, the Court entered an Order dismissing with prejudice
the claims asserted against the Company under Section 10 (b) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. As a result, the only claims that remain
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against the Company are those arising under Section 11 of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended. The Company has entered into an agreement-in-principle to
settle the remaining claims in the litigation. The proposed settlement will
result in a dismissal with prejudice of all claims and will include a release of
all claims that were brought or could have been brought against the Company and
its present and former directors and officers. It is anticipated that any
payment to the plaintiff class and their counsel will be funded by the Company's
directors' and officers' liability insurance and that no direct payment will be
made by the Company. The parties have negotiated and executed a definitive
settlement agreement. The proposed settlement provides that the class members in
the class action cases brought against the participating issuer defendants will
be guaranteed a recovery of $1 billion by insurers of the participating issuer
defendants. If recoveries totaling $1 billion or more are obtained by the class
members from the underwriter defendants, however, the monetary obligations to
the class members under the proposed settlement will be satisfied. In addition,
Dynabazaar and any other participating issuer defendants will be required to
assign to the class members certain claims that they may have against the
underwriters of their IPO's. The proposed settlement contemplates that any
amounts necessary to fund the settlement or settlement-related expenses would
come from participating issuers' directors and officers liability insurance
policy proceeds as opposed to funds of the participating issuer defendants
themselves. A participating issuer defendant could be required to contribute to
the costs of the settlement if that issuer's insurance coverage were
insufficient to pay that issuer's allocable share of the settlement costs. If
ultimately approved by the Court, the proposed settlement would result in the
dismissal, with prejudice, of all claims in the litigation against Dynabazaar
and all of the other issuer defendants who have elected to participate in the
proposed settlement, together with the current or former officers and directors
of participating issuers who were named as individual defendants. The proposed
settlement does not provide for the resolution of any claims against the
underwriter defendants, and the litigation as against those defendants is
continuing. Consummation of the proposed settlement remains conditioned upon
obtaining approval by the Court. On September 1, 2005, the Court preliminarily
approved the proposed settlement, directed that notice of the terms of the
proposed settlement be provided to class members, and scheduled a fairness
hearing for April 24, 2006, at which objections to the proposed settlement will
be heard. Thereafter, the Court will determine whether to grant final approval
to the proposed settlement.
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DYNABAZAAR, INC. SCHEDULE II--VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

BALANCE AT

BEGINNING CHARGED TO
DESCRIPTION OF PERIOD OPERATIONS DEDUCTIONS
Year ended December 31, 2003:
Allowance deducted from asset accounts:
Allowance for doubtful accounts S 267 2 (107)
Deferred tax asset valuation allowance S 52,764 1,793 ——
Year ended December 31, 2004:
Allowance deducted from asset accounts:
Allowance for doubtful accounts S 162 144 (306)
Deferred tax asset valuation allowance S 54,557 5,099 (54,534)

BALANCE
AT END OF
PERIOD

$ 162
$ 54,557

$ 5,122
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Year ended December 31, 2005
Allowance deducted from asset accounts:
Deferred tax asset valuation allowance S 5,122 (506) S

EXHIBIT NO.
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Form of Fifth Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of
the Company (1)

Composite Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company as amended by
Amendment to Bylaws adopted May 16, 2001 (4)

Form of Specimen Certificate for the Company's Common Stock (4)
Shareholder Rights Agreement, dated as of May 17, 2001, between
the Company and EquiServe Trust Company, N.A., as Rights Agent,
including form of Right Certificate(2)

Form of Indemnity Agreement entered into by the Company with each
of its directors(1l)

Amended and Restated 1997 Stock Option Plan(l)+

October 2001 Amendment to Amended and Restated 1997 Stock Option
Plan(4)+

1999 Stock Option Plan(l)+

2000 Stock Option and Incentive Plan(l)+

Composite Transaction Bonus Plan adopted August 28, 2001 as
amended on March 12, 2002 (4)+

Employee Stock Purchase Plan(1l)+

Letter agreement dated June 26, 2001 between the Company and Nanda
Krish (3)+

Amended and Restated Agreement Concerning Termination of
Employment, Severance Pay and Related Matters dated as of October
11, 2001 between the Company and Mathew Ackley (4)+

Second Amended and Restated Agreement Concerning Termination of
Employment, Severance Pay and Related Matters dated as of October
11, 2001 between the Company and Janet Smith (4)+

Lease Agreement dated November 9, 1999, between DIV Unicorn, LLC
and the Company (1)

Siteharbor Services Agreement between the Company and NaviSite,
Inc. dated as of November 1, 2001 together with Amendment to
Siteharbor Services Agreement dated as of November 1, 2001 (4)
Indemnification Agreement among the Company and Sierra Ventures
VII, LP, and Sierra Ventures Associates VII, LLC, dated February
25, 1999(1)

Warrant to Purchase Common Stock between the Company and Lycos,
Inc. dated as of May 12, 1999(1)

Auction Services Agreement, dated September 15, 1999, by and
between the Company and Ticketmaster Online-CitySearch (1)
Agreement Concerning termination of Employment, Severance Pay and
related Matters dated as of January 17, 2002 between the Company
and Nanda Krish (5)+

Second Amendment to Agreement dated as of March 15, 2002 between
the Company and NaviSite, Inc. (5)

Promotions Agreement dated as of April 10, 2002 between the
Company and eBay, Inc. (7)

Third Amendment to Agreement dated as of December 1, 2002 between
the Company and Navisite, Inc. (8)

Agreement Concerning Employment and Termination dated as of
January 20, 2003 between the Company and David George (8) +
Services Agreement dated as of November 17, 2004 between the
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10.

23.
31.

31.

32.

32.
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Company and Barington Capital Group, L.P. (9)

Amendment to Administrative Services Agreement dated as of March
23, 2006 between the Company and Barington Capital Group, L.P.*
Consent of Rothstein, Kass & Company, P.C.*

Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.*

Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.*

Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.*

Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.*

Filed with this Report.

Included as an exhibit to, and incorporated in this Report by reference to,
the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 333-92677), as
amended, filed with the SEC.

Included as an exhibit to, and incorporated in this Report by reference to,
the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 17, 2001 filed with the
SEC on May 22, 2001.

Included as an exhibit to, and incorporated in this Report by reference to,
the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30,
2001 filed with the SEC on November 9, 2001.

Included as an exhibit to, and incorporated in this Report by reference to,
the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2001 filed with the SEC on March 29, 2002.

Included as an exhibit to, and incorporated in this Report by reference to,
the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31,
2002 filed with the SEC on May 14, 2002.

Included as an exhibit to, and incorporated in this Report by reference to,
the Company's Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 20, 2002.

Included as an exhibit to, and incorporated in this Report by reference to,
the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30,
2002 filed with the SEC on August 14, 2002.

Included as an exhibit to, and incorporated in this Report by reference to,
the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2002 filed with the SEC on March 28, 2003.

Included as an exhibit to, and incorporated in this Report by reference to,
the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2004 filed with the SEC on March 30, 2005.
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